Willows City Council City Counc

Gary Hansen, Mayor
Evan Hutson, Vice Mayor

Regu | a r IVI eeti ng Rick Thomas, Council Member

David Vodden, Council Member

November 26 2024 Forrest Sprague, Council Member
Willows City Hall City Manager
6:00 PM Marti Brown

City Clerk

201 North Lassen Street

Willows, CA 95988 Age n d a

(530) 934-7041

Watch the Council meeting online via Zoom: https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/89980829340
pwd=iJWLbrDf9bumCJ8E3qgnrsgc9Mblbab.1

Remote viewing of the City Council meeting for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In the event that the remote viewing
connection malfunctions for any reason, the City Council reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote viewing.
1. CALLTO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

v kA W N

CEREMONIAL MATTERS
a. Proclamation — Pearl Harbor Remembrance Day
6. PRESENTATION

a. Pioneer Community Energy Overview
Recommended Action: Receive Community Choice Aggregators (CCA) overview for the City of
Willows and provide feedback and direction.
Contact: Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

7. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM
All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and are approved by one motion and vote, unless
Councilmembers or the City Manager first requests that a matter be removed for separate discussion and
action. Individuals wishing to address the City Council concerning Consent Calendar items or regarding matters
that are not already on the agenda are invited to make oral comments of up to three minutes at this time.
Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers, and not to staff and/or the audience. By
State law, the Council is not permitted to undertake any action or discussion on any item not appearing on the
posted agenda. If you have any documentation that you would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it
to the City Clerk at 201 North Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: cityclerk@cityofwillows.org.

a. Register Approval
Recommended Action: Approve general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

b. Minutes Approval
Recommended Action: Approve the October 22, 2024, meeting minutes.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org



mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:cityclerk@cityofwillows.org.
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org

c. City Hall - Holiday Closure

Recommended Action: Authorize the City Manager to close City Hall and non-emergency
services on December 23 and 26.

Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

d. Change Cal-Card Program to Umpqua Bank Program

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution XX-2024 authorizing the City Manager to move all
City employee credit cards from Cal-Card (US Bank) to the Umpqua Bank Credit Card.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

e. FY 2022-23 Pavement Project Improvements
Recommended Action: Approve Resolution XX-2024 accepting the improvements associated
with FY 2022-23 Pavement Project and authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion for the
project.
Contact: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director,
jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org

f.  FY 2023-24 Annual Sidewalk Maintenance Project Improvements

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution XX-2024 accepting the improvements associated
with FY 2023-24 Annual Sidewalk Maintenance Project and authorize the filing of the Notice of
Completion for the project.

Contact: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director,
jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org

8. PUBLIC HEARING
All matters in this section of the agenda are formal public hearings and will be acted on individually. Once the
Mayor opens the public hearing, members of the public may request to speak. When you are called on by the
Mayor, please state your name clearly for the audio recording. If you have any documentation that you would
like to be distributed to the Council, please give it to the City Clerk for distribution.

a. Ordinance 760-2024 - Retail Cannabis Dispensary Business in Central Commercial
Recommended Action: Conduct a Public Hearing, and upon conclusion, introduce Ordinance
760-2024 authorizing an amendment to the Willows Municipal Code Chapter 18.55.030 to
allow cannabis retail/dispensary businesses in the Central Commercial Zone with a Conditional
Use Permit.

Contact: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director,
jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org

b. Ordinance 761-2024 - Retail Cannabis Dispensary Business in General Commercial and Light
Industrial Zones
Recommended Action: Conduct a Public Hearing and, upon conclusion, introduce Ordinance
761-2024 authorizing an amendment to the Willows Municipal Code chapter 18.60.030 to allow
cannabis retail/dispensary businesses in the General Commercial Zone with a Conditional Use
Permit.
Contact: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director,
jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org



mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org

9. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
All matters in this section of the agenda are discussed and will be acted on individually. Individuals wishing to
address the City Council concerning any of these items are invited to make oral comments of up to three
minutes at this time. Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers, and not to staff and/or
the audience. When the Mayor calls for public comment, please raise your hand to be acknowledged. While not
required, the City requests that you please state your name clearly for the audio recording. By State law, the
Council is not permitted to undertake any action or discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda.
If you have any documentation that you would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it to the City Clerk
at 201 North Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: cityclerk@cityofwillows.org.

a. Modify Distance Requirements for Cannabis Retail Dispensary Businesses
Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution XX-2024, modifying distance requirements between
cannabis retail dispensary businesses and preschool through grade 12 schools from
one thousand feet (1,000 feet) to six hundred feet (600 feet).

10. COMMENTS & REPORTS

a. Council Correspondence
b. City Council Comments & Reports
c. City Manager’s Report

11. ADJOURNMENT

This agenda was posted on November 22, 2024.

Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk

A complete agenda packet, including staff reports and back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at City Hall
at 201 North Lassen Street in Willows or on the City’s website at www.cityofwillows.org. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the
City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance necessary to participate in this meeting. If requested, the
agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). The public should contact the City Clerk’s office at 934-7041 to make such a request. Notification 72
hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider.



mailto:cityclerk@cityofwillows.org
http://www.cityofwillows.org/

MATTERS



Agenda ltem #5a

City of Willows

WHEREAS, on December 7, 1941, as dawn broke over the island of Oahu, hundreds of bombs
pierced the sky as Imperial Japanese Navy forces launched an unprovoked aerial attack on the
American naval base at Pearl Harbor, thrusting America into a conflict that would forever
change the course of human dignity, freedom, and history. Although the bombardment lasted
only two hours, it was devastating—destroying nearly 20 American naval vessels, including
eight battleships and more than 300 airplanes. The surprise assault resulted in the deaths of
2,403 unsuspecting and innocent military personnel and civilians and wounded an additional
1,178 others; and

WHEREAS, on December 8, 1941, while addressing the United States Congress concerning the
surprise assault on Pearl Harbor, President Franklin D. Roosevelt requested that Congress
declare war on Japan, stating, in part:

“Yesterday, December 7, 1941—a date which will live in infamy—the United States of
America was suddenly and deliberately attacked by naval and air forces of the Empire of
Japan. No matter how long it may take us to overcome this premeditated invasion, the
American people in their righteous might will win through to absolute victory. | believe |
interpret the will of the Congress and of the people when | assert that we will not only
defend ourselves to the uttermost but will make very certain that this form of treachery shall
never endanger us again.”

WHEREAS, on that day, December 8, 1941, Congress approved President Roosevelt's request
for a declaration of war, officially bringing the United States into World War Il; and

WHEREAS, although America may have been unprepared for war, in response to the
declaration of war, the American people summoned a tremendous national effort in military
strength, and patriots from every corner of our Nation answered the call to serve and band
together in a common cause. Sixteen million Americans left behind everything they knew and
loved to fight for freedom far from home and liberate a continent from the grip of

tyranny. Individuals from all backgrounds and walks of life courageously crossed oceans and
stormed beaches, uplifting a generation and paving the way for our fiercest adversaries to
become some of our closest allies; and




Agenda ltem #5a

WHEREAS, the sacrifices of our military personnel at Pearl Harbor became a prelude to those
that America’s brave fighting forces would endure around the world for the next three and one-
half years, and in the example of those who came forth in the months and years following the
attack on Pearl Harbor, we saw an enduring truth: that no challenge is too great when we stand
as one people, committed to the ideals symbolized by the stars and stripes, remembering that
strength, vigilance, and devotion will forever keep America the land of the free and the home of
the brave; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize and honor America’s Greatest Generation who,
through sacrifice, courage, dedication, and determination, courageously defended our Nation
and preserved our freedom and also honor those American patriots who died due to their
service. We resolve to keep faith with those we have loved and lost and always remember Pearl
Harbor and the global conflict of World War II.

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Gary Hansen, Mayor of the City of Willows, on behalf of the Willows City
Council, do hereby proclaim December 7, 2023, as “Pearl Harbor Remembrance Day” in the City
of Willows. | call upon the citizens of Willows to observe this solemn occasion with appropriate
ceremonies and activities and to pledge eternal vigilance and strong resolve to defend our
Nation and its allies from future aggression.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and have caused the seal of the City of
Willows to be affixed hereto this 26™ day of November 2024.

Gary Hansen, Mayor







e
©
=

&
o
—,
©
©
c
)
60
<

llo

ioneec
ie

i 3

) . -

ox s - O i
s = 2
=: e 5
&: o e 3
o IO =



Introductions

- Gina Stassi-Vanacore: Director of Communications, Pioneer
Community Energy

- Lisa DelLaby: Community Outreach Manager, Pioneer Community
Energy



What is a CCA?

« Community Choice Aggregators (CCA) allow
local governments to purchase electricity on
behalf of customers in place of investor-
owned utilities (i.e., PG&E for Pioneer
Community Energy’s territory)

* Energy crisis in the early 2000s prompted the
California Legislature to pass Assembly Bill
117 in 2002, enabling community choice in its
electricity provider

« The first CCA launched in 2010. Today:
o More than 25 CCAs throughout California
o Serving more than 200 communities

o Providing generation for approximately 14
million customers

10



Why Choose Pioneer?

Pioneer serves inland communities with similar priorities like customer
savings, community reinvestment, exceptional customer service, and
economic development

« Local Control - Pioneer is a Joint Powers Authority, a not-for-profit
public agency, with a board of directors comprised of only elected
officials from the jurisdictions we serve.

- Ratepayer Savings - We are committed to providing competitive
electricity rates and have saved customers $85 million since launching
in 2018, with an additional $21 million in savings anticipated in 2024.

- Community Reinvestment - Creating opportunities to support
biomass, and local power purchase agreements

El Dorado Irrigation District ($37 million)

PCWA (Over $10 million)

Sierra Pacific Industries ($1.2 million)

Grass Valley - Biomass RFP

Western Placer Waste Management - biomass plant

11



How Does A CCA Work?

: : == E =

[y 1 1

-

\-'\

N
Electricity

Pioneer buys electricity
from various suppliers.
The buying team works
with sources to negotiate
pricing and ensure a
steady, affordable energy

supply.

e D A
e Bt
Delivery

PG&E delivers
electricity, maintains
the infrastructure of
power lines and poles,
and sends out bills to
customers.

Customer

As a customer of both
Pioneer and PG&E,
customers get a choice in
electricity providers. With
Pioneer, you'll receive
competitive rates, energy
options and exceptional
customer service. "



Our service area

B Pioneer and PG&E Roseville Electric @ smup @ Liberty Energy

13




Benefits to Your Citizens

Lower PG&E.

Utility Bill
Local
I Control

NN

Your
<—= (Citizens

‘ I

Programs

Customers are being served by
a utility that is a member of
the community. We buy,
invest and support the
community.

Customers have a choice
for the first time in 100
years.

Track record of success
Pioneer is financial stable with
an A- credit rating from S&P

Customer

Service

Saves money. From 2018 -
2023, customers have saved
$85 million compared to

Customers are our
shareholders. Our Board is
comprised of elected officials
from the communities we
serve.

Excellent customer
service. We live in the
community and know most
of the questions you have
and can relate.

Customers decide if they
want all renewable energy or
less and you decide what
energy projects we invest in.

Customers decide the

energy efficiency programs

we launch. Not PG&E. 14
Approved $2MM for funding.



Governance

- One Member - One Vote

No weighted voting based on electrical load
usage. Each Member gets equal say.

Board Members are Elected
Officials

Each Member Agency is represented by an
elected official from the City/Town Council
or County Board of Supervisors

You Decide

The Member Agency decides who sits on the
Board. Pioneer imposes no term limits but
encourages consistency when considering

the complexities of the business

15




Community Investment

$126 million. Life-to-data through 2024 of
utility bill savings that is money staying in the
region and not going to Oakland
$37 Million. Signed a 10-year PPA with El
p e Dorado Irrigation District

$15 million. Budget for Feed-In Tariff to
support local biomass and small-hydro in the

a service territory

>$10 million. Energy and resource
adequacy purchases from PCWA

< @ $2 million. Energy efficiency programs
budget with direct impact to our ratepayers

$1.2 million. Renewable energy credits from
Sierra Pacific Industries biomass plant in
Lincoln 16



Biomass & Advocacy

Legislation: Pioneer sponsored and led AB 843 which passed on a
unanimous bipartisan basis - this bill enabled CCAs to participate in
the BioMAT program and launched in Spring 2024

Feed-In Tariff: Pioneer-unique program that incentivizes investment
in biomass and small-hydro projects in our service territory to benefit
the community and create local jobs

Education: Recently hosted an event together with SPI, CalFire, and
Placer APCD for legislators about the benefits of biomass to support
future legislation for biomass

Advocacy Generally: Ongoing advocacy with legislators and regulatory
agencies to keep electricity costs low, promote biomass energy, and
grid stability, among other things

17



Programs

Any program a customer is has with PG&E (e.g.
CARE/FERA) carries over to Pioneer

- Additional Pioneer-specific programs include :

o Online Marketplace —guides customers through the maze of
complex information when deciding to energize their home, and
protects them from bad players

o Participate.Energy - $0 lease program for residents to pair
solar+battery storage that provides stability to rates and resiliency
to grid outages

o @reenlLite - subsidized LED lighting through local retailers in
Pioneer’s service area

o HVAC Tune-Up Rebate - provide rebates to incentivize tune-ups
on home systems to improve efficiency and lower utility bills

o Demand Side Management programs coming soon that reward
customers/businesses to lower energy usage when the grid is
stressed

o Bi-monthly Customer Advisory Committee 18




Community/Regional Partner

« Active involvement with Rural County Representatives of
California (RCRC) to identify potential biomass projects
that leads to economic development

- Participate in member agencies’ Chamber of Commerce
committees and events

« Recently co-sponsored League of Cities divisional event

« Sponsor of marquee events like Lincoln Potters Baseball
Club and Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital gala as
examples of engagement

- Partner with California Biomass Energy Alliance and
Bioenergy Association of California

«  Work with Economic Development groups to entice
business location with Green100 product and competitive
rates

19



Growing Interest in Joining Pioneer

Butte County = (o LIVE OAK

sCALIFORNIA S

CITYor CHICO
INC. 1872

PICONEER

COMMUNITY ENERGY



November 2024

Pioneer conducts background
meetings to gauge interest in
joining working with city/county
staff.

Public meeting presentation from
Pioneer.

Orland, Willows, Glenn County
move forward with Impact
Assessment Study.

Pioneer secures required data from

PG&E.

December 2024

« Orland, Willows,
and Glenn County
Impact
Assessment Study
begins.

January 2025

Study findings shared
with staff.

1st and 2nd readings of
ordinance conducted
by prospective
members.

March 2025

+ Implementation
Plan Amendment
submitted to
CPUC.

21



RIONEER

rd

Questions

Thank you for your time today.




Appendix




Mission & Vision

Mission Statement (What we do) - Pioneer
Community Energy is a locally owned provider of
electricity — powering the communities we serve
with competitive rates, reliable service, and a
choice in energy options

Vision Statement (Where we want to be) - A
community partner in reliable energy solutions, and
positive local impact, powering today and
empowering tomorrow

24



Guiding Principles

- Mission Statement: Pioneer Energy is a locally owned
provider of electricity — powering the communities we
serve with competitive rates, reliable service, and a
choice in energy options

- Vision Statement: A community partner in reliable
energy solutions and positive local impact, powering
today and empowering tomorrow

25



Rate Products

PICONEER

STANDARD

44.1% Renewable*

$265.36**

average total

Residential Electricity Rates*

*SREEN10O

PIONEER

100% Renewable

$272.43**

average total

PG&E

38.3% Renewable

$278.85**

average total

$90.82 $90.82 $96.54
Electricity Electricity Electricity
N/A $7.07 N/A
Greenl00 Charges Greenl00 Charges Greenl00 Charges
$177.13 $177.13 $177.13

PG&E Shipping Charges

PG&E Shipping Charges

$(2.59)***
PCIA + FFS

PG&E Shipping Charges

$(2.59)***
PCIA + FFS

*As reported to the California Public Utilities Commission and Pioneer's Board of Directors.

$5.19***
PCIA

26



2022 POWER CONTENT LABEL

Pioneer Community Energy

orglabout-us/key-documents/

2022 Pioneaear 2022 Pionaar
Community Community
Energy Base Enargy
Service Grean100
Power Mix Power Mix

2022 CA
Power Mix

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity

(Ibs CO,e/MWh) Energy Resources

2023 Pi r_—r 1
Comemurity Energy n:mmmn?;:fw 2022 CA Uity Average Eligible Renewable 44.1% 100.0% 35.8%
Bass Service Greeniid Blomass & Blowaste 0.6% 0.0% 2 1%
343 0 422 Geathermal B.1% 0.0% 4.7%
1000 m 2022 Pioneer Eligible Hydroalectric 2.T% 21.6% 1.1%
500 Community Energy Solar 11.5% 28.4% 17.0%
Base Service Wind 23.3% 50.0% 10.8%
600 2022 Pioneer Coal ) 0.0% 0.0% 21%
Community Energy Large Hydroelectric 1.3% 0.0% 9.2%
400 GreenlDo MNatural Gas 0.0% 0.0% 36.4%
200 2022 CA Utility MNuclear 27.6% 0.0% 9.2%
Average Other 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%
0 Unspecified Power” 27.0% 0.0% 7.1%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Percentage of Retail Sales Coverad by Retired Unbundied RECs™: 4% 0%

"The eligible renewable percentage above does not reflect RPS compliance, which is determined using a different methodology.
2L!r|spm:|ﬂa-:| power |5 electricity that has been purchased through open market ransactions and |s not traceable to a specific
generalion source.
*Renewable energy credits (RECs) are tracking instruments issued for renewable generation. Unbundled renewable energy credits
{RECs) represaent renewable generation that was not delivered 1o serve retail sales. Unbundled RECs are not reflected in the
power mix of GHG amissions intensities above.

For specific information about this electricity

portfolio, contact:

Pioneer Community Energy

1 (844) 937-7466

For general information about the Power Content
Label, visit:

https:/ fwww.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-

tu-pil:s,-"prnﬁ ramslu:EDwer-su-url:E-disl:Iﬂ-su re-program

27



PG&E Programs Carry Over

« Enrollment in any program with PG&E, carries over to
Pioneer. Examples include but not limited to:

- CARE
- FERA
« Medical Baseline

 PGR&E service will not be impacted by joining Pioneer
(e.g., service request placed last in que with PG&E
because you're with Pioneer)

- In addition, customers have access to Pioneer programs
that are created to meet the unique needs of the
communities we serve,

28



Benefits for Solar Customers

 Pioneer has 42,000+ solar accounts

« If you are a net generator, we pay a 2 cent premium
over PG&E for your power

« If you are a net consumer, you enjoy the same
discount as non-solar customer

 No contract or PPA required

« Reconcile monthly
 Annual pay-outs
« Indifferent on NEM 1,2 or SBP

)

29



How are customers billed?

ENERGY STATEMENT Account No:

. Statement Date: 05/03/2023
* www.pge.com/MyEnergy Due Date:  05/24/2023

Service For: Your Account Summary
Amount Due on Previous Statement £310.25
Payment{s} Received Since Last Statement -311.00
Qutstanding Credit Balance -50.75
Current PG&E Electric Delivery Charges 580.73
Questions about your bill? Pioneer Community Enemgy Electric Generation Chamges 31.35
Mon-Fri 7 am-7 p.m. Current Gas Charges 110.27
Satuday 8 am.-5 p.m.
Phone: 1-800-74 3-5000 Total Amount Due by 05/24/2023 $241.60
www . pge.com/MyEnergy

PG&E Bill - Page #1
- Pioneer listed on the front page

- Customer pays total energy bill to PG&E - one payment
 PG&E remits $ to Pioneer

30



PUBLIC COMMENT &
CONSENT CALENDAR
FORUM



Bank:

Vendor Number

Payment Type
**Void Check

Vendor Number

City of Willows

Gen Chk - General Checking

Vendor Name
**Void**
Payment Number
54994

Vendor Name

Agenda ltem #7a

Payment Register
APPKT00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Total Vendor Amount
0.00
Payment Amount
0.00

Payment Date
11/07/2024

Total Vendor Amount

1014 ACCESS 91.42
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54990 11/07/2024 91.42

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
11215876 NOVEMBER 2024 SHREDDING 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 91.42

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1052 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 206.16
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54991 11/07/2024 206.16

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
17G4-PJQD-KWTW ZIP BOOKS - LIBRARY GRANT - LIBRARY 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 48.27
1R9T-GY93-GVGL SUPPLIES - CITY HALL CRAWL - CITY FIN ED PLAN 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 91.31
1RFJ-YK71-LMQ7 LIBRARY MATERIALS & OFFICE SUPPLIES - LIBRARY 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 66.58

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1077 APPEAL-DEMOCRAT 72.70
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54992 11/07/2024 72.70

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
0035061-112024 52 WEEK SUBSCRPTION RENEWAL - LIBRARY 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 72.70

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1255 COASTLAND CIVIL ENGINEERI 53,015.11
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54993 11/07/2024 53,015.11

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
60149 72-4949 - FY22-23 PAVEMENT PJT CM & INSPECTION 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 376.25
60193 725256 - SEWER RATES FOR FY24-25 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 3,428.75
60201 725283 - FY24 SEWER REHABILITATION 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 13,492.50
60215 725024 - ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 3,030.00
60237 425150 - LIFT STATION REHAB PJT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 4,618.86
60238 725155 - FY23-24 ANNUAL SIDEWALK MAINT PJT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 2,613.75
60239 725158 - SYCAMORE PARK CCLGP FUNDED PJT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 1,512.50
60334 72-4441 - 20 BUILDING DEPT SERVICE - FY24-25 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 337.50
60335 72-4441 - 311 S VILLA SCHOOL BUS EV - PERMIT #5237  11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 580.00
60336 72-4441-555 N TEHAMA-MERCADO-PERMIT #5247 ADA | 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 2,595.00
60337 72-4441 - 132 SYOLO ST PERMIT #5261 - SOLAR & BAT ~ 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 397.50
60338 72-4441- 312 W CEDAR ST PERMIT #5262 - SOLAR & BAT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 435.00
60339 72-4441 - 1270 BRENNAN PL PERMIT #5263 SOLAR & BA" 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 412.50
60340 72-4441 - 250 S PLUMAS ST PERMIT #5257 SOLAR & BAT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 360.00
60341 72-4441- 915 GLENNWOOD LN PERMIT #5268 SOLAR & E 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 360.00
60342 72-4441 - 639 S LASSEN ST PERMIT #5271 SOLAR & BAT  11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 360.00
60343 72-4441 - 241 W CEDAR ST PERMIT #5272 SOLAR & BAT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 360.00
60377 725310 - CDBG APP - FY 24-25 SIDEWALK MAINT PJT 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 11,196.25
60387 725279 - CITY ENGINEERING FY24-25 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 6,548.75
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 1 of 8

39



Payment Register

Vendor Number

Vendor Name

APPKT00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Total Vendor Amount

1261 COMCAST CABLE 265.29
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54995 11/07/2024 265.29

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
8155600290115941-102424 SERVICES FROM 10-29-24 TO 11-28-24 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 265.29

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1277 CORNING LUMBER WILLOWS 581.45
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54996 11/07/2024 581.45

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
2410-069407 CODE ENFORCEMENT-143 N YOLO-BOARDS-PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 49.76
2410-070697 2" CULLS - FIRE 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 2.93
2410-071046 2X12 BOARDS - SOFTBALL BACKSTOPS - PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 148.09
2410-071159 2X12 BOARDS - SOFTBALL BACKSTOPS - PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 30.86
2411-072336 CODE ENFORCEMENT-SUPPLIES - 143 N YOLO - PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 237.57
2411-072434 CODE ENFORCEMENT - SUPPLIES - 143 N YOLO - PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 112.24

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1325 DEMCO, INC. 416.77
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54997 11/07/2024 416.77

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
7560227 BOOK PROCESSING SUPPLIES - LIBRARY 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 416.77

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2466 FOSTER & FOSTER INC 750.00
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54998 11/07/2024 750.00

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
33363 PREP OF GASB 75 TABLE UPDATES FY END 2024 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 750.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2364 FP MAILING SOLUTIONS 162.71
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 54999 11/07/2024 162.71

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
RI106418566 POSTAGE CARTRIDGE & FREIGHT - CW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 162.71

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1463 GANDY & STALEY OIL CO 2,272.95
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55000 11/07/2024 2,272.95

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
224867 FUEL - PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 919.32
225144 FUEL - PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 870.35
87140-103124 FUEL - FIRE 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 483.28

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1467 GAYNOR TELESYSTEMS, INC. 120.07
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55001 11/07/2024 120.07

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
INV000045029 PHONE LINE FOR SUPPORT KIOSK 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 120.07
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 2 of 8

30



Payment Register

Vendor Number Vendor Name

APPKT00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Total Vendor Amount

1503 GLENN CO SHERIFFS DEPT 169,166.67
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55002 11/07/2024 169,166.67

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
2025 GCSO JULY 2024 SERVICES 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 169,166.67

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1539 HINDERLITER DELLAMAS & AS 2,972.19
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55003 11/07/2024 2,972.19

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
SIN044430 CONTRACT SERV 10-24 TO 12-24 & AUDIT SERV SALES TX 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 2,972.19

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1566 INFRAMARK LLC 55,443.29
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55004 11/07/2024 55,443.29

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
134418 OCTOBER 2024 SERVICES - PUBLIC WORKS 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 55,443.29

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1606 JEREMY'S PEST STOMPERS 40.00
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55005 11/07/2024 40.00

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
1112420 NOVEMBER 2024 SERVICE - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 40.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2363 LACO ASSOCIATES 18,642.50
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55006 11/07/2024 18,642.50

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
53492 SEPTEMBER 2024 PLANNING SERVICES 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 18,642.50

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1680 LANNIE'S SEPTIC TANK SERV 144.79
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55007 11/07/2024 144.79

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
26354 PORTABLE TOILET RENT & SERVICE - PARKS - PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 144.79

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1760 MATSON & ISOM TECHNOLOGY 1,203.28
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55008 11/07/2024 1,203.28

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
0026479-IN MERAKI LICENSE RENEWAL - CITYWIDE 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 1,075.78
95341 CONSULTATION SERVICES 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 127.50

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1792 MJB WELDING SUPPLY, INC 53.32
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55009 11/07/2024 53.32

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
0001499478 ACETYLENE CYL RENT - PW 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 53.32
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 3 of 8

34



Payment Register

Vendor Number Vendor Name

APPKT00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Total Vendor Amount

2312 NAPA AUTO PARTS 507.22
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55010 11/07/2024 507.22

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
694919 AIR & OIL FILTER - LEAF TRUCK - PUBLIC WORKS 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 102.14
694954 WIPERS-E-3,T-4,U-8-FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 190.82
694967 NEW CORD REELS - APP BAY - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 214.26

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1864 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 35.39
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55011 11/07/2024 35.39

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
4878-463743 BLUEDEF - PARKS - PUBLIC WORKS 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 35.39

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1143 PEDRO BOBADILLA 576.92
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55012 11/07/2024 576.92

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
110824PB RECREATIONAL SERVICES 10-26-24 TO 11-8-24 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 576.92

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1917 PG&E 40.35
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55013 11/07/2024 40.35

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
1773553795-7-103124 SERVICE TO 10-31-24 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 40.35

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1926 PLEXUS GLOBAL LLC 67.00
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55014 11/07/2024 67.00

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
17846 DOT RANDOMS - PUBLIC WORKS 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 67.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2332 PRENTICE LONG, PC 13,265.00
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55015 11/07/2024 13,265.00

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
7060 SERVICES RENDERED THROUGH 10-26-24 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 9,165.00
7061 N YOLO ST RECEIVERSHIP -SERVICES THROUGH 10-26-24 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 3,872.00
7062 SALES TAX - SERVICES RENDERED THROUGH 10-26-24 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 228.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2390 QUENCH USA, INC 63.28
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55016 11/07/2024 63.28

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
INV08147970 NOVEMBER 2024 WATER SERVICE - CC 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 63.28

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2044 SAFETY TIRE SERVICE 991.44
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55017 11/07/2024 991.44

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
62507-A MAINT & REPAIRS - 2019 HENDRICKSON FT #3 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 991.44
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 4 of 8

33



Payment Register

Vendor Number

Vendor Name

APPKT00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Total Vendor Amount

2334 STREAM IT NETWORKS LLC 85.00
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55018 11/07/2024 85.00

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
2024-11000051 NOVEMBER 2024 INTERNET - PUBIC WORKS 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 85.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1439 THE FIRST CHOICE COFFEE S 45.00
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55019 11/07/2024 45.00

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
1719 NOVEMBER 2024 WATER FILTRATION - FIRE 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 45.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2207 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 1,610.95
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55020 11/07/2024 1,610.95

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
025-484959 BUILDING PERMITS - USER INTERFACE 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 1,610.95

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

1798 UBEO WEST, LLC 378.22
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55021 11/07/2024 378.22

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
541229175 PRINTER USAGE 9-20-24 TO 10-27-24 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 378.22

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2395 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS 9,001.83
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55022 11/07/2024 9,001.83

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
BROWN102224-01 DROPBOX - FOR PLANNING SERVICES - PLANNING - TARA 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 119.88
BROWN102224-02 VISTAPRINT - POSTCARDS - CITY FINANCIAL ED PLAN 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 244.51
BROWN102224-03 TAKE 1 MARKETING - DOOR TO DOOR - CITY FIN ED PLAN 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 5,539.04
BROWN102224-04 FLIPPINGBOOK - CITY FINANCIAL ED PLAN 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 59.00
BROWN102224-05 FUNJUMPERRENTAL - SYCAMORE PARK - CITY FIN ED PLA 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 60.00
BROWN102224-06 FUNJUMPERRENTAL - SYCAMORE PARK - CITY FIN ED PLA 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 353.00
BROWN102224-07 TAKE 1 MARKETING - CITY FINANCIAL ED PLAN 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 2,000.00
MONCK102224-01 WILLOWS TRAVEL PLAZA- FUEL - PREOP-OES FUNDED-FIF 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 121.66
MONCK102224-02 DUTCH BROS - PREPO - OES FUNDED - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 13.60
MONCK102224-03 AMAZON - A/C CONTROL HEAD - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 92.12
MONCK102224-04 HARDWARESOURCE.COM - T-4 HINGES - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 32.78
MONCK102224-05 SAV MOR - PREPO - OED FUNDED - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 9.28
MONCK102224-06 CHEVRON - FUEL - PREPO OES FUNDED - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 119.28
MONCK102224-07 WILLOWS TRAVEL PLAZA-FUEL-PREPO - OES FUNDED-FIR 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 122.68
PFYL102224-01 PESTICIDE APPLICATORS PRO - CERT - PUBLIC WORKS 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 115.00

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2248 VERIZON WIRELESS 403.40
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55023 11/07/2024 403.40

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
9977290483 OCTOBER 2024 SERVICE 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 403.40

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount

2433 VESTIS 317.02
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55024 11/07/2024 317.02

Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
5066710336 UNIFORM SERVICE - PUBLIC WORKS 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 158.51
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 5 of 8

38



Payment Register

APPKT00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

5066715659 UNIFORM SERVICE - PUBLIC WORKS 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 158.51
Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount
2260 WAL-MART COMMUNITY - CREDIT CARD 657.73
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55025 11/07/2024 657.73
Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
604234-1658634134-01 SYCAMORE PARK - DISPLAY DESIGN BOARDS 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 60.27
604234-1658634134-02 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - PUBIC WORKS 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 26.25
604234-1658634134-03 TRAINING - TV - FIRE 11/04/2024 11/04/2024 0.00 571.21
Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount
2295 WILLOWS ACE HARDWARE 1,009.23
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55026 11/07/2024 1,009.23
Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
115801 SUPPLIES - SYCAMORE PARK - CITY ED FIN PLAN 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 41.80
116279 SUPPLIES - SOFTBALL FIELDS BACKSTOP - PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 46.10
116307 DRILL BIT - SOFTBALL FIELD REPAIRS - PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 20.37
116524 BATHROOM SINK FAUCETS - FIRE 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 54.67
116539 PAINT - SOFTBALL FIELDS BACKSTOPS - PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 232.19
116563 FASTENERS - SOFTBALL FIELD BACKSTOPS -PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 34.11
116574 LEVER - TOILET - LIBRARY - PW 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 12.86
116583 TOILET - LIBRARY - PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 117.96
116590 SYCAMORE PARK VALVE - PARKS - PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 227.24
116599 RETURN - LEVER - TOILET - LIBRARY - PW 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 -12.86
116815 SOLAR FLAGPOLE LIGHT - FIRE 11/06/2024 11/06/2024 0.00 31.09
116859 GATE LATCH - RENTAL 139 N LASSEN - PW 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 19.29
116948 REPLACE POOL PUMP - CITY POOL - PUBLIC WORKS 11/07/2024 11/07/2024 0.00 182.31
K16200 FASTENERS - FIRE 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 0.00 2.10
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 6 of 8

32



Payment Register APPKTO00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Payment Summary

Payable Payment

Bank Code Type Count Count Discount Payment
Gen Chk Voided **Void Check 0 1 0.00 0.00
Gen Chk Check 98 36 0.00 334,675.65
Packet Totals: 98 37 0.00 334,675.65
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 7 of 8

38



Payment Register APPKTO00330 - 11-7-24 CHECK RUN

Cash Fund Summary

Fund Name Amount
999 CASH CLEARING -334,675.65
Packet Totals: -334,675.65
11/20/2024 3:37:58 PM Page 8 of 8

38



Payment Register
City of Willows APPKT00332 - AP PAYROLL CHECK RUN 11.08.2
01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: Gen Chk - General Checking

Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount
1194 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSE 162.92
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55027 11/08/2024 162.92
Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
INV0000895 CHILD SUPPORT 11/08/2024 11/08/2024 0.00 162.92
Vendor Number Vendor Name Total Vendor Amount
2223 UNITED PUBLIC EMPLOYEES A 233.10
Payment Type Payment Number Payment Date Payment Amount
Check 55028 11/08/2024 233.10
Payable Number Description Payable Date Due Date Discount Amount Payable Amount
CMO0000032 PUBLIC SAFETY DUES 11/08/2024 11/30/2024 0.00 -23.31
INV0000900 PUBLIC SAFETY DUES 11/08/2024 11/30/2024 0.00 256.41

11/20/2024 3:39:22 PM Page 1 of 3

40



Payment Register

Bank Code
Gen Chk

Type
Check

Packet Totals:

Payable
Count

3

3

Payment
Count

2

2

APPKT00332 - AP PAYROLL CHECK RUN 11.08.2

Payment Summary

Discount Payment
0.00 396.02
0.00 396.02

11/20/2024 3:39:22 PM

Page 2 of 3
48



Payment Register APPKT00332 - AP PAYROLL CHECK RUN 11.08.2

Cash Fund Summary

Fund Name Amount
999 CASH CLEARING -396.02
Packet Totals: -396.02
11/20/2024 3:39:22 PM Page 3 of 3

49



City of Willows

Packet: PYPKT00310 - PAY PERIOD 10-21-24 to 11-03-24 PAY DATE 11-08-24

Payroll Set: Payroll Set 01 - 01

Employee

VODDEN, DAVID

CANO, GABRIELA M
CASTORENA, SOFIA
GUTIERREZ, JACQUELINE
RANDOLPH, CORA

Employee #
VODO00
CANO1
CASTO1
GUTO01
RANO2

Check Type
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Date

11/08/2024
11/08/2024
11/08/2024
11/08/2024
11/08/2024

Payroll Check Register

Pay Period:

Amount
228.12
58.40
94.90
171.54
87.60

Number
40967
40968
40969
40970
40971

Checks

10/21/2024-11/3/2024

11/6/2024 12:20:03 PM

Page 1 of 4
20



Payroll Check Register

City of Willows Direct Deposits
Pay Period: 10/21/2024-11/3/2024

Packet: PYPKT00310 - PAY PERIOD 10-21-24 to 11-03-24 PAY DATE 11-08-24
Payroll Set: Payroll Set 01 - 01

Employee Employee # Date Amount Number
HANSEN, GARY L HANO2 11/08/2024 228.12 1006
SPRAGUE , FORREST SPROO 11/08/2024 228.12 1007
THOMAS, RICHARD THOO0O0 11/08/2024 228.12 1008
BROWN, MARTHA BROO1 11/08/2024 3,497.66 1009
HAZLETT, ROBIN HAZ01 11/08/2024 1,297.87 1010
MOORE, JOANNE MOO001 11/08/2024 150.00 1011
MOORE, JOANNE MOO001 11/08/2024 2,777.14 1011
BROTT, SHERRY BROO02 11/08/2024 45.62 1012
EHORN, MARIA ANNETTE EHO00 11/08/2024 45.62 1013
MYERS, HOLLY MEY00 11/08/2024 45.62 1014
VALENCIA, LLANIRA VALO1 11/08/2024 45.62 1015
RUSTENHOVEN, TARA L RUSO1 11/08/2024 1,679.83 1016
ARELLANES, ASHLEY MARIE AREOO 11/08/2024 242.70 1017
BRIONES, BRENDA VALENZUELA  BRIOO 11/08/2024 398.79 1018
EHORN, CAITLIN A EHO02 11/08/2024 1,125.22 1019
GAMBOA, YADIRA GAMO00 11/08/2024 314.09 1020
SPENCE, KYLIEGH C SPEOQ2 11/08/2024 496.40 1021
VARGAS, GIOVANI VAROOQ 11/08/2024 537.16 1022
BOBADILLA, PEDRO D BOBO0O 11/08/2024 45.62 1023
BOBADILLA, TAVIAN BOB02 11/08/2024 47.46 1024
GALLARDO-CANO, NATALY GALO1 11/08/2024 94.90 1025
HARLAN, HELEN HARO3 11/08/2024 48.64 1026
RAYGOZA, RODRIGO RAY0O0 11/08/2024 119.08 1027
ENOS, KYLE ENOOO 11/08/2024 1,678.85 1028
FUENTES, JAIME FUEO1 11/08/2024 1,449.71 1029
HUTSON, EVAN C HUTO1 11/08/2024 228.12 1030
LOMBARD, TYLER JOSEPH LOMO00 11/08/2024 1,565.77 1031
LOPEZ, MATTHEW LOPO3 11/08/2024 775.51 1032
ABOLD, STEVEN B ABOO0OQ 11/08/2024 1,586.92 1033
MINGS, MICHAEL E MINOO 11/08/2024 1,313.83 1034
RANDOLPH, MATTHEW RANO1 11/08/2024 1,282.64 1035
REED, JOSHUA REEQOQ 11/08/2024 1,195.66 1036
VASQUEZ, PEDRO CEASAR VASO01 11/08/2024 1,862.32 1037
BETTENCOURT, JOSEPH BETO1 11/08/2024 3,554.29 1038
MONCK, NATHANIAL T MONOO 11/08/2024 3,315.99 1039
PFYL, NATISA N PFY00 11/08/2024 1,643.16 1040
11/6/2024 12:20:03 PM Page 2 of 4

24



Payroll Check Register

City of Willows Employee Pay Summary
Pay Period: 10/21/2024-11/3/2024

Packet: PYPKT00310 - PAY PERIOD 10-21-24 to 11-03-24 PAY DATE 11-08-24
Payroll Set: Payroll Set 01 - 01

Employee Employee # Payment Date Number Earnings Deductions Taxes Net
ABOLD, STEVEN B ABOOQO 11/08/2024 1033 2,130.11 185.93 357.26 1,586.92
ARELLANES, ASHLEY MARIE AREOQO 11/08/2024 1017 339.84 69.40 27.74 242.70
BETTENCOURT, JOSEPH BETO1 11/08/2024 1038 4,750.61 413.43 782.89 3,554.29
BOBADILLA, TAVIAN BOB02 11/08/2024 1024 52.00 0.00 4.54 47.46
BOBADILLA, PEDRO D BOBOO 11/08/2024 1023 50.00 0.00 4.38 45.62
BRIONES, BRENDA VALENZU BRIOO 11/08/2024 1018 448.00 0.00 49.21 398.79
BROTT, SHERRY BROO02 11/08/2024 1012 50.00 0.00 4.38 45.62
BROWN, MARTHA BROO1 11/08/2024 1009 5,676.92 786.85 1,392.41 3,497.66
CANO, GABRIELA M CANO1 11/08/2024 40968 64.00 0.00 5.60 58.40
CASTORENA, SOFIA CASTO1 11/08/2024 40969 104.00 0.00 9.10 94.90
EHORN, MARIA ANNETTE  EHOO00 11/08/2024 1013 50.00 0.00 4.38 45.62
EHORN, CAITLIN A EHO02 11/08/2024 1019 1,539.20 162.35 251.63 1,125.22
ENOS, KYLE ENOO0O 11/08/2024 1028 2,471.87 486.67 306.35 1,678.85
FUENTES, JAIME FUEO1 11/08/2024 1029 2,114.24 495.93 168.60 1,449.71
GALLARDO-CANO, NATALY GALO1 11/08/2024 1025 104.00 0.00 9.10 94.90
GAMBOA, YADIRA GAMOO0 11/08/2024 1020 352.00 0.00 37.91 314.09
GUTIERREZ, JACQUELINE GUTO01 11/08/2024 40970 188.00 0.00 16.46 171.54
HANSEN, GARY L HANO2 11/08/2024 1006 250.00 0.00 21.88 228.12
HARLAN, HELEN HARO3 11/08/2024 1026 53.31 0.00 4.67 48.64
HAZLETT, ROBIN HAZ01 11/08/2024 1010 1,988.62 551.82 138.93 1,297.87
HUTSON, EVAN C HUTO1 11/08/2024 1030 250.00 0.00 21.88 228.12
LOMBARD, TYLER JOSEPH |LOMOO 11/08/2024 1031 2,663.93 683.97 414.19 1,565.77
LOPEZ, MATTHEW LOPO3 11/08/2024 1032 898.70 0.00 123.19 775.51
MINGS, MICHAEL E MINOO 11/08/2024 1034 1,933.69 288.22 331.64 1,313.83
MONCK, NATHANIALT MONOO 11/08/2024 1039 4,651.38 725.31 610.08 3,315.99
MOORE, JOANNE MOO001 11/08/2024 1011 4,743.20 497.88 1,318.18 2,927.14
MYERS, HOLLY MEY00 11/08/2024 1014 50.00 0.00 4.38 45.62
PFYL, NATISA N PFYO00 11/08/2024 1040 3,001.51 836.42 521.93 1,643.16
RANDOLPH, MATTHEW RANO1 11/08/2024 1035 1,757.60 168.45 306.51 1,282.64
RANDOLPH, CORA RANO2 11/08/2024 40971 96.00 0.00 8.40 87.60
RAYGOZA, RODRIGO RAY00 11/08/2024 1027 130.50 0.00 11.42 119.08
REED, JOSHUA REEO0O 11/08/2024 1036 1,757.60 393.93 168.01 1,195.66
RUSTENHOVEN, TARA L RUSO1 11/08/2024 1016 2,446.92 390.08 377.01 1,679.83
SPENCE, KYLIEGH C SPEQ2 11/08/2024 1021 544.00 0.00 47.60 496.40
SPRAGUE , FORREST SPROO 11/08/2024 1007 250.00 0.00 21.88 228.12
THOMAS, RICHARD THOO00 11/08/2024 1008 250.00 0.00 21.88 228.12
VALENCIA, LLANIRA VALO1 11/08/2024 1015 50.00 0.00 4.38 45.62
VARGAS, GIOVANI VAROO 11/08/2024 1022 592.00 0.00 54.84 537.16
VASQUEZ, PEDRO CEASAR \VVASO1 11/08/2024 1037 2,667.78 393.23 412.23 1,862.32
VODDEN, DAVID VODO0O 11/08/2024 40967 250.00 0.00 21.88 228.12

Totals: 51,761.53 7,529.87 8,398.93 35,832.73
11/6/2024 12:20:03 PM Page 3 of 4

23



Payroll Check Register

City of Willows Report Summary
Pay Period: 10/21/2024-11/3/2024

Packet: PYPKT00310 - PAY PERIOD 10-21-24 to 11-03-24 PAY DATE 11-08-24
Payroll Set: Payroll Set 01 - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 5 640.56
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 36 35,192.17
Total 41 35,832.73
11/6/2024 12:20:03 PM Page 4 of 4

28



Agenda ltem #7b

Willows City Council

City Council

i Gary Hansen, Mayor

RegUIar MeEtlng Evan Hutson, Vice Mayor
ACtlon M | N utes Rick Thomas, Council Member

David Vodden, Council Member
Forrest Sprague, Council Member

October 22, 2024

Willows City Hall City Manager
6:00 PM Marti Brown
201 North Lassen Street City Clerk

Willows, CA 95988
(530) 934-7041

1. CALLTO ORDER-6:01 PM
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLLCALL
Councilmembers Present: Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Thomas, Councilmember Vodden, and
Councilmember Sprague
Councilmembers Absent: Vice-Mayor Hutson

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
5. CEREMONIAL MATTERS
a. Proclamation — Veteran’s Day
6. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM

a. Register Approval
Action: Approved general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.

b. Minutes Approval
Action: Approved the October 15, 2024, meeting minutes.

7. PUBLIC HEARING

a. 2024 Community Development Block Grant
Action: Conducted a Public Hearing for the Application Submission Phase of the 2024 Community
Development Block Grant Over-the-Counter Sidewalk Rehabilitation and Competitive Planning
Grant Applications; and Adopted a Resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of Willows to
execute an agreement, and any amendments thereto, with the State of California for the
purposes of this grant.

Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Thomas and Vodden
Yes: Councilmembers Thomas, Vodden, and Sprague, and Mayor Hansen

No: None
27



Absent: Vice Mayor Hutson

8. DISCUSSION AND ACTION CALENDAR

a. Lift Station Rehabilitation Project
Action: Approved the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute:

= An agreement with SnL Group, Inc. for the Lift Station Rehabilitation Project for
$1,564,980;

» A contract amendment with Coastland | DCCM for $195,000 to provide project
construction management and inspection services;

» A contract amendment with NexGen for $40,000 to provide engineering support services
during construction; and

= establishing an overall project budget of $1,956,478.

Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Thomas and Sprague
Yes: Councilmembers Thomas, Vodden, and Mayor Hansen
No: None

Absent: Vice Mayor Hutson

b. Potential Re-Prioritization of Pavement Management Program (PMP) List
Action: Provided direction to staff to potentially revise and re-prioritize the Pavement
Management Program list for street rehabilitation using SB 1 Transportation Funds.

9. COMMENTS & REPORTS
a. Council Correspondence

b. City Council Comments & Reports
c. City Manager’s Report

9. ADJOURNMENT - 7:35PM

Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk

28



Agenda ltem #7c

Date: November 26, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers
From: Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: City Hall - Holiday Closure

Recommendation:

Authorize the City Manager to close City Hall and all non-emergency services on December 23 and 26.

Rationale for Recommendation:

City Hall will already be closed on December 24, 25, and 27 due to Council-authorized paid holidays
and the current Friday closure. It will also be closed on January 1 and 3 for New Year’s Day and the
current Friday closure. Most City Hall and Public Works staff are either planning to or would like to take
off those additional two days. Should City Hall be closed, the city has no fiscal impact as all city
employees use Vacation Leave and/or Compensatory Time Off for this leave of absence.

Background:

For the past three calendar years, City Hall has closed during the Christmas/New Year holiday. This
tradition started because very few City Hall employees were available to cover the phones and
counter, and in the past, some employees were prevented from using their vacation time. To avoid
requiring some staff to work during the holiday week of Christmas and preventing them from using
their vacation and taking leave, in 2021, line staff proposed closing during the week of Christmas.

Discussion & Analysis:

Historically, the week of Christmas has been prolonged at the front counter and on the phones. For
example, the last time that City Hall was opened during the week between Christmas and New Year’s
Day in 2020 (which was a four-day work week), three building permits were pulled. In 2019 and 2018,
respectively, one permit was pulled during the same holiday week each year.

As in most cities, there is very little building and planning activity during the weeks of Christmas and
New Year’s. Staff anticipates no significant impact and/or inconvenience to the public by closing City
Hall on December 23 and 26. In addition, the Municipal Code allows for emergency work (e.g., sewage
line repairs). At the same time, the city is closed if the applicant comes to City Hall when it reopens to
apply for a retroactive encroachment permit. This information would be publicly noticed and available
on the City’s website and Facebook page.

20



Agenda ltem #7c¢

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact as all City employees would use Vacation Leave and/or Compensatory Time
for the proposed holiday closure.

Attachment:

= Attachment 1: Proposed Holiday Closure Schedule — December 2024 — January 2025

20



Attachment 1

DECEMBER 2024

SUN SAT

1 2 3 4 ) 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28
XX X[ XX

29 30 31 1 2 3 4
X X

>< = Already Closed (e.g., paid holiday, Friday closure).

X =Recommended additional days to close.

28



mbrown
Line


Agenda ltem #7d

Date: November 26, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

From: Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: Change Cal-Card Program to Umpqua Bank Program

Recommendation:

Approve Resolution XX-2024 authorizing the City Manager to move all City employee credit cards from
Cal-Card (US Bank) to the Umpqua Bank Credit Card.

Rationale for Recommendation:

The City of Willows conducts all its city business with Umpqua Bank (in Willows). It has a strong
working relationship with a Personal Banker that will benefit the City in the event that it seeks a line of
credit with Umpqua Bank in 2025 and/or 2026 (as discussed at the October 22 City Council meeting).

Background:

The City’s current business credit card is with the Cal-Card Program through the State Department of
General Services and administered by US Bank. The City has never had a Personal Banker with US Bank
because the City banks with Umpqua Bank. Therefore, communication with US Bank is complex and an
“anonymous” transaction (e.g., the City must call US Bank’s 1-800 number for service). As a result,
working with US Bank when we need immediate assistance has been tedious and inefficient use of
staff time (e.g., being “on hold” for 30 minutes or more). Furthermore, US Bank no longer has a branch
in the City of Willows.

In contrast, the City does all its banking with Umpqua Bank and has a strong working relationship with
the bank. The bank has a local branch and an assigned Personal Banker to assist the City with any
account issues and/or concerns.

Discussion & Analysis:

In addition to contributing to more effective and efficient working relations with Umpqua Bank and the
city’s Personal Banker, the switch from the US Bank-administered Cal-Card Program to Umpqua Bank’s
credit card program will also expedite and more easily facilitate the potential issuance of a line of
credit should the City need to take advantage of this financial tool while waiting to receive the new
sales tax revenue. In addition, the change to the Umpqua Bank credit card will also result in the
following added benefits:

239



Agenda ltem #7d

» Dedicated Umpqua Bank associates offering support before and after implementation.

= Allows for easy card program administrative management with full or limited access rights
depending on the needs of the client.

* Issue a limitless number of virtual cards.

= Offer a Mobile Wallet option.

= Ability to search for and view specific account and/or transactions.

= Seamlessly change cardholder credit limits (temporarily or permanently).

* [nstitute spending controls such as limits and merchant restrictions.

= Set up auto payment or make manual payments for balance payoff each month.

= Provide direct data feed with many expense management solutions.

= Provide Commercial Card Rebate/Revenue share solution with no annual fee.

= Receive an annual rebate based on annual spend as follows:
o If annual combined spend is above $250,000 but below $750,000, receive 0.50% rebate.
o If annual combined spend is above $750,000 but below $2,000,000, receive 0.75%* rebate.
o If annual combined spend exceeds $2,000,000, receive 1.00%* rebate.

e *0.50% on all large ticket transactions and negotiated rate transactions.

Overall, the change from the Cal-Card Program to the Umpqua Bank Credit Card will result in several
benefits (as outlined above), especially the City’s ability to easily and quickly access a line of credit
should it need to in the future.

Consistency with Council Priorities and Goals:

The staff recommendation is consistent with Priority #1: Financial Stability.

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact to changing city credit cards from the US Bank-administrated Cal-Card
Program to the Umpqua Bank Credit Card Program.

Attachments:

=  Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2024

30



Attachment 1

City of Willows
Resolution xx-2024

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH
UMPQUA BANK TO PARTICIPATE IN THE UMPQUA BANK COMMERCIAL PURCHASING CARD PROGRAM

WHEREAS, Credit cards and purchasing cards are mechanisms for purchasing goods and
services for the convenience of the City of Willows; and

WHEREAS, for the past several years, the City of Willows has participated in the State of
California’s Cal-Card Program administered by US Bank; and

WHEREAS, for a variety of reasons that would benefit the city, including more efficiently and
effectively being able to secure a line of credit with the City’s bank, the city wishes to change from the
Cal-Card Credit Card Program to the Umpqua Bank Commercial Purchasing Card Program (‘Program’);
and

WHEREAS, to participate in the Program, it is required to submit an application for credit
approval, a resolution by the City Governing Council, and City policy and procedures regarding the
use of credit cards; and

WHEREAS, the City procedures for using credit cards is included in the City’s Administrative
Procedures & Policy Manual as required by the Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS AS
FOLLOWS:

a. Authorize submission of an application to Umpqua Bank for credit cards or purchasing cards,
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute any and all necessary agreements, and
c. Authorize the City Manager and Finance Director to add or remove participants.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows this 26™ day of November 2024, by

the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

APPROVED: ATTESTED:

Gary Hansen, Mayor Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk

34



Agenda ltem #7e

Date: November 26, 2024
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council
From: John Wanger, City Engineer

Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director
Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: FY 2022-23 Pavement Project Improvements

Recommendation:

Approve Resolution XX-2024 accepting the improvements associated with the FY 2022-23 Pavement
Project and authorizing the filing of the Notice of Completion for the project.

Background:

On March 25, 2024, the City opened public bids for the FY 2022-23 Pavement Project. The low bidder
was Pavement Coatings Company. The City Council awarded the project to Pavement Coatings Company
at their April 9, 2024, Council meeting.

Pavement Coatings Company recently completed the project to the City’s satisfaction. The total
construction cost was $672,143.79.

Based on the satisfactory completion of the work, Staff recommends that the City Council accept the
improvements and authorize the City Engineer to file the Notice of Completion.

Fiscal Impact:
The overall budget and expenditures for this project is summarized as follows:

Approved Actual

Budget Expenditure
Construction: $ 633,642 $ 633,642
Contingency (10%): S 63,364 S 38,502
Construction Mgmt./Insp S 104,550 $ 102,068
Total S 801,556 S 774,212

The original sources of funding for this project included $525,000 of SB-1 Funds and $276,556 of RSTP
Funds. Based on the overall cost of the project, only $249,212 of the RSTP funding was used—a savings
of $27,344 to the RSTP Fund.

33


https://672,143.79

Attachment:

= Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2024

38



Attachment 1

City of Willows
Resolution xx-2024

RESOLUTION NO. __-2024

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
ACCEPTING THE IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH FY22-23 PAVEMENT PROJECT, AND
AUTHORIZING THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION TO BE FILED FOR THE PROJECT

WHEREAS, at the April 9, 2024, City Council meeting, the City Council approved enteringinto a
contract with Pavement Coatings Company for the FY22-23 Pavement Project ("Project") and
established an overall project budget; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been inspected and determined to have been completed in
accordance with the contract requirements; and

WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, staff recommends acceptance of the Project on behalf of
the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS AS
FOLLOWS:

1. The City hereby accepts the improvements associated with the Project.

2. Authorizes and directs the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion concerning the
Project with the Glenn County Clerk’s Office within ten (10) days of the date of this
Resolution.

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately.

4, All portions of this resolution are severable. Should any individual component of this

Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a body of competent
jurisdiction, then the remaining resolution portions shall be and continue in full force and
effect, except as to those resolution portions that have been adjudged invalid. The City
Council of the City of Willows hereby declares that it would have adopted this Resolution
and each section, subsection, clause, sentence, phrase and other portion thereof,
irrespective of the fact that one or more section subsection, clause sentence, phrase or
other portion may be held invalid or unconstitutional.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows, State of California this 26t
day of November 2024, by the following vote:

3%



AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

APPROVED:

Gary Hansen, Mayor

ATTESTED:

Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk

38



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:
City Clerk

City of Willows

201 Pacific Avenue

Willows, CA 95988

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the undersigned City of Willows, 201 N. Lassen Street, Willows, California, owners in fee of
201 N. Lassen Street within the City of Willows, California, observed certain construction work to be performed within the City
of Willows, County of Glenn, which work is generally described as follows:

The FY22-23 Pavement Project. This project included pavement treatment of N. Humboldt Street between Wood St. and
Sycamore St; Sycamore Street between N. Humboldt and Villa Ave.; Crawford Avenue, between Sycamore St. and Laurel St.;
replacement of non-conforming pedestrian ramps on these streets; and replace two alleyway driveways on the alleyway
between S. Shasta Street and S. Butte Street at the W. Laurel St. and W. Ash St. entrances.

That the contractor for the performance of such work was awarded to Pavement Coatings Company and that said work was
satisfactorily completed on October 18, 2024, in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications. The final construction
cost for the project was $672,143.79.

This notice is given pursuant to Section 9204 of the Civil Code of the State of California.

City of Willows

A Municipal Corporation

This is to certify that the Notice of Completion | declare under penalty of perjury that the
above is hereby authorized by order of the Council | information is true and correct.

of the City of Willows pursuant to Council
Resolution No. ___ dated November 26, 2024,
and owner consents to recordation thereof by its By:

duly authorized officer.
, City Engineer

Dated: November 26, 2024

36


https://672,143.79

Agenda ltem #7f

Date: November 26, 2024
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council
From: John Wanger, City Engineer

Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director
Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: FY 2023-24 Annual Sidewalk Maintenance Project Improvements

Recommendation:

Approve Resolution XX-2024 accepting the improvements associated with the FY 2023-24 Annual
Sidewalk Maintenance Project and authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion for the
project.

Background:

On July 11, 2024, the City opened public bids for the FY 2023-24 Annual Sidewalk Maintenance
project. Rock Creek Construction was the low bidder. The City Council awarded the project to
Rock Creek Construction at its July 23, 2024, Council meeting. The project replaced 1,100 square
feet of sidewalk.

Rock Creek Construction recently completed the project to the City’s satisfaction. The total
construction cost was $58,193.

Based upon the satisfactory completion of the work, Staff recommends that the City Council
accept the improvements and authorize the City Engineer to file the Notice of Completion.

Fiscal Impact:
The overall budget and expenditures for this project is summarized as follows:

Approved Actual

Budget Expenditure
Construction: S 45,706 S 45,706
Contingency (10%): S 4,570 $12,487
Construction Mgmt./Insp S 6,000 S 4,203
Total $ 56,276 $62,396

As illustrated, the overall initial project budget was exceeded. During construction, the

contractor needed to replace approximately 330 additional square feet of damaged sidewalk,

causing the contingency budget to be exceeded. This overage was partially offset by spending
80



less on Construction Management and Inspection than was initially anticipated. The overall
result was a budget increase of $6,120.

The source of funding for this project is the RSTP Funds. The RSTP fund has adequate funds to
cover the additional $6,120.

Attachment:

=  Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2024

88



Attachment 1

City of Willows
Resolution XX-2024

RESOLUTION NO. XX - 2024

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
ACCEPTING THE IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH FY 2023-24 ANNUAL SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE
PROJECT, AND AUTHORIZING THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION TO BE FILED FOR THE PROJECT

WHEREAS, at the July 23, 2024, City Council meeting, the City Council approved entering into a
contract with Rock Creek Construction for the replacement of damaged sidewalk at four locations
within the City ("Project") and established an overall project budget; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been inspected and determined to have been completed in
accordance with the contract requirements; and

WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, staff recommends acceptance of the Project on behalf of
the City; and

WHEREAS, the contractor installed an additional 330 square feet of damaged sidewalk than
what was identified in the bid documents, leading to the overall approved budget being exceeded by
$6,120.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS AS
FOLLOWS:

1. The City hereby accepts the improvements associated with the Project.

2. Authorizes and directs the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion concerning the
Project with the Glenn County Clerk’s Office within ten (10) days of the date of this
Resolution.

3. Authorizes use of an additional $6,120 from the RSTP fund to cover overages associated
with the project.

4, This Resolution shall become effective immediately.

5. All portions of this resolution are severable. Should any individual component of this

Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a body of competent
jurisdiction, then the remaining resolution portions shall be and continue in full force and
effect, except as to those resolution portions that have been adjudged invalid. The City
Council of the City of Willows hereby declares that it would have adopted this Resolution
and each section, subsection, clause, sentence, phrase and other portion thereof,

89



irrespective of the fact that one or more section subsection, clause sentence, phrase or
other portion may be held invalid or unconstitutional.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows, State of California this 26t
day of November 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

APPROVED: ATTESTED:

Gary Hansen, Mayor Marti Brown, City Clerk

80



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:
City Clerk

City of Willows

201 Pacific Avenue

Willows, CA 95988

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the undersigned City of Willows, 201 N. Lassen Street, Willows, California, owners in fee of
201 N. Lassen Street within the City of Willows, California, observed certain construction work to be performed within the City
of Willows, County of Glenn, which work is generally described as follows:

The replacement of damaged sidewalk at four locations within the City of Willows.

That the contractor for the performance of such work was awarded to Rock Creek Construction and that said work was
satisfactorily completed on October 18, 2024, in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications. The final construction
cost for the project was $58,193.

This notice is given pursuant to Section 9204 of the Civil Code of the State of California.

City of Willows

A Municipal Corporation

This is to certify that the Notice of Completion above is | declare under penalty of perjury that the information is
hereby authorized by order of the Council of the City of | true and correct.
Willows pursuant to Council Resolution No. ____ dated
November 26, 2024, and owner consents to recordation
thereof by its duly authorized officer. By:
, City Engineer

Dated: November 26, 2024

64



PUBLIC HEARING



Agenda Item #8a

Date: November 26, 2024
To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers
From: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director

Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: Ordinance 760-2024 - Cannabis Retail Dispensary Business in Central Commercial

Recommendation:

Conduct a Public Hearing and, upon conclusion, introduce Ordinance 760-2024 authorizing an
amendment to the Willows Municipal Code chapter 18.55.030 to allow cannabis retail/dispensary
businesses in the Central Commercial Zone with a Conditional Use Permit.

Rationale for Recommendation:

As directed by the Council at the September 10, 2024, City Council meeting, staff is bringing forward the
first reading of Ordinance 760-2024 (Attachment 1) to allow cannabis retail/dispensary businesses in the
Central Commercial Zone with a Conditional Use Permit.

Staff will publish the required public notices and hold a Public Hearing for adopting Ordinance 760-
2024 on December 10, 2024, City of Willows City Council meeting.

Background:

On November 28, 2017, the Willows City Council adopted a Cannabis Ordinance #736-2017
(Attachment 2) to facilitate the approval, regulation, and operation of cannabis businesses. This
ordinance, as chaptered in the WMC along with State laws (Attachment 3) and regulations, imposes
strict zoning, security, and operational requirements on cannabis dispensaries. Thereafter, the Willows
City Council adopted Resolution #32-2017 (Attachment 4), which established a maximum of two
licenses for cannabis retail/dispensary businesses within the City of Willows, 1,000-foot setbacks from
churches, schools, licensed daycare or preschool facilities, playgrounds and/or parks for retail cannabis
dispensaries and directed the Planning Commission to review zoning to determine where retail
cannabis businesses could operate.

In July 2018, Ordinances #738- 2018 and #739-2018 (Attachments 5 and 6) were passed by the City
Council. These ordinances amended the Willows Municipal Code to allow retail cannabis dispensaries
in Highway Commercial and combined zones with a Conditional Use Permit (e.g., General
Commercial/Light Industrial/Planned Development and General Commercial/Planned Development).

88



The City of Willows Municipal Code (WMC) Section 9.20.070 allows for the commercial sale of
Cannabis and Cannabis products for medical and non-medical uses, subject to the conditions set forth
in this code, and only in zones in which such sales are permitted uses pursuant to WMC Title 18.

At the February 14, 2023, City Council meeting, a public hearing was held, and a Resolution was passed
approving a business license for Sundial Collective. Since approval, Sundial Collective has never moved
forward with the construction of the project in South Willows, and the permit has now expired. Before
Sundial Collective, Element 7 was another approved dispensary application whose permit expired before
the project was ever started. In both instances, the applicants would have preferred to occupy existing
buildings (because they were more affordable). Still, they could not find buildings within the city limits
that satisfied the city’s distance and/or zoning requirements. As a result, they resolved to construct new
buildings; however, they both allowed their permits to expire, and staff could not contact them — they
“disappeared.”

At the May 28, 2024, City Council meeting, Resolution #19-2024 (Attachment 7) was adopted to remove
all setback requirements from churches, licensed daycares, playgrounds, and parks. Still, it retained a
1,000-foot setback requirement from schools (e.g., preschool through 12th grade). The Council also
directed staff to present zoning modification options to the Planning Commission for consideration and
to return to the Council with any Commission recommendations to modify the zoning for retail cannabis
businesses.

At the July 17, 2024, Planning Commission meeting, staff presented this information and requested
direction on whether to modify the zoning in which a retail cannabis business may operate with a
Conditional Use Permit (CUP). The Planning Commission elected to take no action to modify the zoning
in which retail cannabis businesses may operate.

The item was brought back to the City Council at the September 10, 2024, meeting, and the staff was
directed to prepare an Ordinance to modify the Willows Municipal Code to allow cannabis
retail/dispensary businesses in the Central Commercial, General Commercial, and Light Industrial Zones
and reduce the setback from schools to 600 feet.

Discussion & Analysis:

There is minimally developed land (e.g., a suitable structure for retail cannabis dispensary businesses)
in the Highway Commercial and Mixed-Use zones. Allowing cannabis retail/dispensary businesses in
the Central Commercial Zone creates an opportunity for potential businesses to access developed land,
which is a significant investment incentive. It is also an opportunity to direct traffic from I-5 into the
city’s downtown business corridor. This has the potential to positively affect surrounding businesses by
increasing foot traffic to the area. Attachment 8 is a map showing the Central Commercial Zone with a
600-foot setback from schools.

The Central Commercial zone permits the following uses:

(1) Pet shops and veterinary offices.

(2) Mortuaries and funeral parlors.

(3) Bars and cocktail lounges.

(4) Private and public parking lots.

(5) Private schools and business colleges.

67



(6) Public schools and colleges.

(7) Martial arts and exercise studios.

(8) Health clubs.

(9) Outside sales and transient or mobile business operations.

(10) New and used automobile sales, automotive rental establishments and automotive repair;
provided, that these uses are located on properties fronting on Tehama Street.

(11) Mini-markets without gasoline sales.

(12) Hotels, motels, and similar lodging facilities.

(13) Bed and breakfast establishments.

(14) Churches.

(15) Civic clubs.

(16) Reserved.

(17) Accessory uses, including repair operations and services.

(18) Other uses which, in the opinion of the planning commission, are like those uses listed.
(19) Uses and structures with drive-through windows.

Consistency with Council Priorities and Goals:

Consideration of allowing Retail Cannabis Dispensary Businesses in the Central Commercial Zone is
consistent with the Council’s Priority #1: Financial Stability, and Priority #2: Economic Development.

Fiscal Impact:

While it is uncertain exactly how much revenue might be generated by modifying the zoning for retail
cannabis dispensary businesses, two retail business licenses in the city limits would certainly increase
sales tax revenue and encourage the placement of a local cannabis business tax on a future ballot.

Attachments:

= Attachment 1: Proposed Ordinance #760-2024

= Attachment 2: Ordinance #736-2017

= Attachment 3: State Cannabis Regulations

= Attachment 4: Resolution #32-2017

= Attachment 5: Ordinance #738- 2018

= Attachment 6: Ordinance #739-2018

= Attachment 7: Resolution #19-2024

= Attachment 8: Central Commercial Zone Map w/600-foot Setback from Schools

88



Attachment 1

City of Willows
Ordinance 760-2024

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS AMENDING CHAPTER 18.55.030 CC
CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS MUNICIPAL CODE SPECIFICALLY TO ADD
SECTION 18.55.030(20) TO ALLOW CANNABIS RETAIL DISPENSARY BUSINESSES IN THE CENTRAL
COMMERCIAL ZONE, ALL OTHER TEXT IS TO REMAIN UNCHANGED

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS does ordain as follows:
SECTION 1: The City Council does hereby amend Chapter 18.55.030 of the Willows Municipal Code,

specifically adding section 18.55.030(20), Chapter 18.55.030 of the City of Willows Municipal Code is
hereby amended to read as follows;

18.55.030 Uses permitted with a conditional use permit.

The following uses and structures are permitted in the CC district only if a conditional use permit has
first been secured:

(1) Pet shops and veterinary offices.

(2) Mortuaries and funeral parlors.

(3) Bars and cocktail lounges.

(4) Private and public parking lots.

(5) Private schools and business colleges.

(6) Public schools and colleges.

(7) Martial arts and exercise studios.

(8) Health clubs.

(9) Outside sales and transient or mobile business operations.

(10) New and used automobile sales, automotive rental establishments and automotive repair;
provided, that these uses are located on properties fronting on Tehama Street.

(11) Mini-markets without gasoline sales.

88



(12) Hotels, motels, and similar lodging facilities.
(13) Bed and breakfast establishments.

(14) Churches.

(15) Civic clubs.

(16) Reserved.

(17) Accessory uses, including repair operations and services. Such services shall be clearly incidental to
the sale of products at retail on the premises, shall not employ more than five persons excluding sales
personnel, and shall be placed and constructed so as not to be offensive or objectionable because of
odor, dust, smoke, noise, or vibration.

(18) Other uses which, in the opinion of the planning commission, are similar to those uses listed
above.

(19) Uses and structures with drive-through windows. [Ord. 732-17 § 1, 11-14-17; Ord. 714-15 § 1, 6-9-
15; Ord. 700-11 § 1, 7-12-11; Ord. 676-07 § 1(15.03), 8-28-07; Ord. 664-00 § 15.03, 6-27-00; Ord. 632-
91 § 15.03, 10-22-91].

(20) Cannabis retail/dispensary business subject to development standards and WMC 9.20.070 to
9.20.080 and defined in WMC 8.10.010. [Ord. 738-18 § 1, 8-14-18; Ord. 733-17 § 1, 11-14-17; Ord. 701-
11§1,7-12-11; Ord. 632-91 § 16.03, 10-22-91].

SECTION 2: The City Council of the City of Willows finds that the forgoing amendment and adoption of
Ordinance No. 760-2024 is consistent with the General Plan, all applicable specific plans and the City of
Willows Zoning Ordinance.

SECTION 3: The City Council of the City of Willows further finds that the project is exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3); and

SECTION 4: Severability- Should any provision of this ordinance, or its application to any person or
circumstance, be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unlawful, unenforceable or
otherwise void, that determination shall have no effect on any other provision of this ordinance or the
application of this ordinance to any other person or circumstance and, to that end, the provisions
hereof are severable.

SECTION 5: Judicial Review- The time within which judicial review must be sought is governed by
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6

SECTION 6: Effective Date- This ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days after its
adoption as provided by Government Code Section 36937.

%0



INTRODUCED first reading on the 26™" day of November 2024.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows this 10t day of December 2024, by
the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

APPROVED: ATTESTED:

Gary Hansen, Mayor Tara Rustenhoven, City Clerk

43



Attachment 2

ORDINANCE NO. 736-2017

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLOWS REPEALING WILLOWS MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER
9.20 (“MEDICAL MARIJUANA”), ADOPTING NEW CHAPTER
9.20 (“CANNABIS”), REPEALING CHAPTER 8.10.010
(“DEFINITIONS”), ADOPTING NEW CHAPTER 8.10.010, AND
AMENDING CHAPTER 8.10 (“NUISANCE”) TO REGULATE
CANNABIS USE, CULTIVATION, SALES AND OTHER
CANNABIS ACTIVITIES IN THE CITY OF WILLOWS.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Willows intends to and hereby
does establish regulations pertaining to the personal cultivation of cannabis,
regulations pertaining to the commercial sales of cannabis and cannabis
products, and prohibiting all other cannabis-related activities within the City of
Willows; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. Section
841 et seq.) makes it unlawful to manufacture, distribute, dispense or possess
cannabis, and, accordingly, medical and nonmedical cannabis dispensaries are
illegal under Federal law; and

WHEREAS, in 2013, Deputy U.S. Attorney General James Cole issued a
memorandum to all Federal prosecutors to provide guidance on the enforcement
of the Federal Controlled Substances Act as it related to cannabis, indicating that
enforcement would not be a priority in states and local jurisdictions that have
laws authorizing cannabis-related conduct and that have implemented strong and
effective regulatory and enforcement systems that will address the threat those
state laws could pose to public safety, public health, and other law enforcement
interests; and that have provided the necessary resources to demonstrate the
willingness to enforce their laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, in 2015, Congress began to defund enforcement of the
Federal Controlled Substances Act in states where such enforcement activities
would prevent states from implementing their own state laws that authorize the
use, distribution, possession or cultivation of medical cannabis; and

WHEREAS, the voters of the State of California approved Proposition 215
(codified as Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et seq., “The
Compassionate Use the Act of 1996”); the intent of Proposition 215 was to
enable persons who are in need of cannabis for medical purposes to obtain and
use it without fear of State criminal prosecution; and

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015, Governor Brown approved a series of
bills commonly referred to as the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act
("“MCRSA"), effective on January 1, 2016, which establishes a comprehensive
State licensing and regulatory framework for the cultivation, manufacture,
transportation, storage, distribution, and sale of medical cannabis, also known as
marijuana; and which recognized the authority of local jurisdictions to either
impose additional restrictions or prohibit certain activities related to the
cultivation, manufacture, transportation, storage, distribution, delivery, and sale of
medical cannabis; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2016 the voters of the State of California
approved Proposition 64, known as the “Control, Regulate and Tax Adult Use of

= ¢4¢



1G¢

CIrtYy OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

Marijuana Act” (“AUMA”), which establishes a comprehensive State licensing and
regulatory framework for the cultivation, manufacture, transportation, storage,
distribution, and sale of recreational cannabis, also known as marijuana; and
which recognizes the authority of local jurisdictions to either impose additional
restrictions or prohibit certain activities related to the cultivation, manufacture,
transportation, storage, distribution, delivery, and sale of recreational cannabis;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Willows has recognized, and
continues to recognize, the potential adverse impacts on the health, safety, and
welfare of its residents and business from secondary effects associated with
commercial cannabis activity, which include: offensive odors, trespassing, theft,
violent encounters between growers and persons attempting to steal plants, fire
hazards, increased crime in and about the dispensary, robberies of customers,
negative impacts on nearby businesses, nuisance problems, and increased DUI
incidents; and

WHEREAS, there is a need to adopt health, safety, and welfare, as well as
land use regulations, to avoid adverse impacts on the community which may
arise from both personal use and cultivation and commercial cannabis activity;
and

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017 Governor Brown signed SB 94, a bill which
among other things established a new statutory framework which reconciled the
MCRSA and AUMA and regulating medical and non-medical cannabis use,
possession, cultivation and commercial activities in the State of California
(referred to as “MAUCRSA"); and

WHEREAS, the MCRSA, AUMA and MAUCRSA set forth a
comprehensive framework to regulate cannabis and cannabis products from
seed to use or ingestion by a consumer, which includes uniform health and
safety standards designed to implement quality control, a labeling and a track-
and-trace program, and other consumer protections, which mitigates some of the
potential adverse impacts identified by the City Council in the past; and

WHEREAS, an effective regulatory system governing cannabis in the City
of Willows as provided herein, will address potential adverse impacts to the
public health, welfare, and safety, thereby allowing cannabis cultivation for
personal use and certain commercial cannabis activity within specified use zones
with the City consistent with California law; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the enactment of
this Ordinance is exempt from environmental review pursuant to California
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15061 (b)(3) in that there is nothing
in this Ordinance or its implementation that could have a foreseeable significant
effect on the environment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS
does ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. The City Council finds and determines the foregoing recitals
to be true and correct and hereby incorporates them into this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. Chapter 8.10.010 of the Willows Municipal Code is hereby
repealed in its entirety.

SECTION 3. A new Chapter 8.10.010, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is
hereby adopted into the Willows Municipal Code.

Pagg 2



CiTYy OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

SECTION 4. Chapter 8.10.020, subsections (24) and (25), of the Willows
Municipal Code are hereby replaced with new subsections (24) and (25) as
follows:

(24) To cultivate, maintain, process or store on the property cannabis without a
permit from the City of Willows pursuant to Chap. 9.20 of the Willows Municipal
Code.

(25) To cultivate, or allow the cultivation of, more than six (6) cannabis plants on
any single property in violation of Chap. 9.20 of the Willows Municipal Code.

SECTION 5. Chapter 8.10.020 of the Willows Municipal Code is hereby
amended by the addition of the following subsections:

(26) To cultivate, or allow to be cultivated, cannabis outdoors, or in an enclosed
building or shed that is visible from the public rights of way or neighboring
properties.

(27) To cultivate cannabis on any property on which the permit holder does not
reside full time.

(28) Any other cannabis activity in violation of Chap. 9.20 of the Willows
Municipal Code.

SECTION 6. Chapter 9.20 of the Willows Municipal Code is hereby
repealed in its entirety.

SECTION 7. A new Chapter 9.20, attached hereto as Exhibit B, is hereby
adopted into the Willows Municipal Code.

This ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of
the City of Willows, held on November 14, 2017, and adopted at a regular
meeting of the City Council of Willows, held on the November 28, 2017, by the
following vote, to wit:

AYES: Williams, Mello, Yoder, Vice-Mayor Warren & Mayor Hansen
NOES: None.

ABSENT: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

APPROVED: ATTEST:
GARY HANSEN, MAYOR ROBYNYOHNSON, CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

THE CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE

) 1k

ROBERT HUNT, CITY ATTORNEY

Page 3, ng



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

EXHIBIT A .

Pagg 4

£G¢



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

Article I. General Provisions

New Chap. 8.10.010 is adopted as follows:
8.10.010 Definitions.

The following definitions shall apply in this chapter:

“Appeals Board”. The city council of the city of Willows is designated to act as the
appeals board.

“Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or
Cannabis ruderalis, whether growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin, whether crude
or purified, extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt,
derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin. “Cannabis” also
means the separated resin, whether crude or purified, obtained from cannabis.
“Cannabis” does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from the
stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, manufacture,
salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted
therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of
germination. The terms “cannabis” and “marijuana” may be used interchangeably
herein, and both shall have the meaning specified here.

“Cannabis business” means a business or enterprise engaged in commercial cannabis
activity.

“‘Commercial cannabis activity” includes cultivation, possession, manufacture,
distribution, processing, storing, laboratory testing, labeling, transportation, research
and development, delivery or sale of cannabis or cannabis products for commercial
purposes, whether for profit or nonprofit.

“Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying,
curing, grading, trimming, or processing of cannabis.

“Deliver” or “Delivery” shall have the same meaning as set forth in Business and
Professions Code Section 26001 and Health and Safety Code section 11009. “Deliver”
or “Delivery” as used in this chapter shall not include the transfer of cannabis to a
patient by a primary caregiver, or the transfer of bulk cannabis or cannabis product to a
licensed dispensary or retail business for resale.

“‘Dispensary” means a retail establishment, facility or location holding an M-license
issued by the State of California where the primary purpose is to dispense medical
cannabis or medical cannabis products. A “dispensary” shall not include dispensing of
medical cannabis by primary caregivers to qualified patients in the following locations
and uses, as long as the location of such uses is otherwise regulated by this code or
applicable law: a qualified patient’s or caregiver’s place of residence, a clinic licensed
pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a health care facility
licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential
care facility for persons with chronic life-threatening hospice, or a home health agency
licensed pursuant to Chapter 8 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, as long as
any such use complies strictly with applicable law including, but illness licensed
pursuant to Chapter 3.01 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential care
facility for the elderly licensed pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the Health and
Safety Code, a residential not limited to, Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et
seq.

“‘Enforcement officer,” unless otherwise specified, shall be the city manager or his
designee.

‘Highway” means a way or place of whatever nature, publicly maintained and open to

the use of the public for purposes of vehicular travel. Highway includes streets and
alleys.

Page ge 9 93



GG

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

“Manufacture” means to compound, blend, extract, infuse, or otherwise make or prepare
a cannabis product.

“Marijuana” as used in this chapter shall have the same meaning as “cannabis” set forth
in subsection above. The terms “cannabis” and “marijuana” may be used
interchangeably, and both shall have the meaning specified here.

“Marijuana processing” means any method used to prepare marijuana or its byproducts
for commercial retail and/or wholesale, including but not limited to: drying, cleaning,
curing, packaging, and extraction of active ingredients to create marijuana-related
products and concentrates.

“Medicinal or medical cannabis” or “medicinal or medical cannabis product” means
cannabis or a cannabis product, respectively, intended to be sold for use pursuant to
the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 215), found at Section 11362.5 of the
Health and Safety Code, by a medicinal cannabis patient in California who possesses
an identification card issued by the California Department of Public Health.

“Nuisance” means anything which is injurious to health, or is indecent or offensive to
the senses, or an obstruction to the free use of property so as to interfere with the
comfortable enjoyment of life or property, or unlawfully obstructs the free passage or
use, in the customary manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay, stream, canal, or
basin, or any public park, square, street or highway.

“Permit” refers to a permit issued to a person as described in chap. 9.20.040.

“Permittee” means any person or entity holding a permit issued by the City of Willows to
engage in cultivation of not more than six (6) cannabis plants in accordance with chap.
9.20.040, et seq.

“Person” includes any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association,
corporation, collective, limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver,
syndicate, or any other group or combination acting as a unit, and the plural as well as
the singular.

“Primary caregiver” has the same meaning as in Section 11362.7 of the Health and
Safety Code and who holds a valid caregiver identification card issued by the California
Department of Health.

“Private nuisance” means every nuisance not applicable to “public nuisance.”

“Public nuisance” means any nuisance affecting at the same time an entire community
or neighborhood, or any considerable number of persons, although the extent of the
annoyance or damage inflicted upon individuals may be unequal.

“Qualified patient” shall have the same definition as Health and Safety Code Sections
11362.7(c) and (f).

“Retail” means the saie of either medical or nonmedical cannabis or cannabis products
to the public in relatively small quantities for use or consumption rather than for resale.

“Retail business” or “retail/dispensary cannabis business” means (1) the commercial
activity of engaging in the retail sales of cannabis or cannabis products, or (2) the
location upon or from which the retail sales of cannabis or cannabis products are made.

“School” means an institution of learning for minors, whether public or private, which
offers instruction in those courses of study required by the California Education Code or
which is maintained pursuant to standards set by the State Board of Education. This
definition includes a nursery school, kindergarten, elementary school, junior high school,
senior high school, or a special institution of learning under the jurisdiction of the State
Department of Education, or a site that is planned for such school uses in the City’s
general plan, but it does not include a vocational or professional institution or any

Pagm 6



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

institution of higher education, including a community or junior college, college or
university.

“Vehicle” means a device by which any person or property may be propelled, moved or
drawn upon a highway, except a device moved by human power or used exclusively
upon stationary rails or tracks. [Ord. 719-162 § 2, 1-26-16. Prior code § 9-30].

“Youth-oriented facility” shall mean elementary school, middle school, high school,
public park, and any establishment that advertises in a manner that identifies the
establishment as catering to or providing services primarily intended for minors, or the
individuals who regularly patronize, congregate or assemble at the establishment are
predominantly minors. This shall not include a licensed daycare or preschool facility that
provides supervision of eight or fewer minor children, or children under ten years of age.

Page gs

8G¢



CrTY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

EXHIBIT B .

LS¢ rege?



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

TITLE 9 PUBLIC PEACE, MORALS AND WELFARE
Chap. 9.20 Cannabis
9.20.010 Findings
9.20.015 Purpose and Intent
9.20.020 Definitions
9.20.025 Possession of Cannabis or Cannabis Product
9.20.030 Prohibited Activities
9.20.040 Cannabis Cultivation
9.20.050 Residential Cultivation Permits, Enforcement, Penalties
9.20.070 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business Licenses
9.20.080 General Conditions for All Retail/Dispensary Business Permits
9.20.090 Regulations and Enforcement
9.20.120 Severability

Chapter 9.20 Cannabis
9.20.010 Findings

(a) The Federal Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. Section 841 et seq.) makes it
unlawful to manufacture, distribute, dispense or possess cannabis, and, accordingly,
medical and nonmedical cannabis dispensaries and retail businesses are illegal under
Federal law;

(b) In 2013, Deputy U.S. Attorney General James Cole issued a memorandum to all
Federal prosecutors to provide guidance on the enforcement of the Federal Controlled
Substances Act as it related to cannabis, indicating that enforcement would not be a
priority in states and local jurisdictions that have laws authorizing cannabis-related
conduct; that have implemented strong and effective regulatory and enforcement
systems that will address the threat those state laws could pose to public safety, public
health, and other law enforcement interests; and that have provided the necessary
resources to demonstrate the willingness to enforce their laws and regulations;

(c¢) In 2015, Congress began to defund enforcement of the Federal Controlled
Substances Act in states where such enforcement activities would prevent states from
implementing their own state laws that authorize the use, distribution, possession or
cultivation of medical cannabis;

(d) The voters of the State of California approved Proposition 215 (codified as Health
and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et seq., “The Compassionate Use Act of 1996” or
“CUA"); the intent of Proposition 215 was to enable persons who are in need of
cannabis for medical purposes to obtain and use it without fear of State criminal
prosecution;

(e) On October 9, 2015, Governor Brown approved a series of bills commonly referred
to as the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (‘“MCRSA”), effective on January
1, 2016, which established a comprehensive State licensing and regulatory framework
for the cultivation, manufacture, transportation, storage, distribution, and sale of medical
cannabis, also known as marijuana; and which recognizes the authority of local

PR 002



65¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

jurisdictions to either impose additional restrictions or prohibit certain activities related to
the cultivation, manufacture, transportation, storage, distribution, delivery, and sale of
medical cannabis;

() On November 8, 2016 the voters of the State of California approved Proposition 64,
known as the “Control, Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act” (*“AUMA”), which
established a comprehensive State licensing and regulatory framework for the
cultivation, manufacture, transportation, storage, distribution, and sale of recreational
cannabis, also known as marijuana; and which recognized the authority of local
jurisdictions to either impose additional restrictions or regulate or prohibit certain
activities related to the cultivation, manufacture, transportation, storage, distribution,
delivery, and sale of recreational cannabis;

(@) On June 27, 2017 Governor Brown signed into law SB 94, a bill which, among other
things, reconciled differences between MCRSA and AUMA, and established a new
statutory framework regulating medical and non-medical cannabis use, possession,
cultivation and commercial activities in the State of California (referred to as
‘MAUCSRA");

(h) The City Council of the City of Willows has recognized, and continues to
recognize, the potential adverse impacts on the health, safety, and welfare of its
residents and business from secondary effects associated with commercial cannabis
activity, which include: offensive odors, trespassing, theft, violent encounters between
growers and persons attempting to steal plants, fire hazards, increased crime in and
about points of sale, robberies of customers, negative impacts on nearby businesses,
nuisance problems, and increased DUI incidents;

() There is a need to adopt health, safety, and welfare regulations to avoid or mitigate
adverse impacts on the community which may arise from commercial cannabis activity;

(i) The MCRSA, AUMA and MAUCRSA set forth a comprehensive framework to
regulate cannabis and cannabis products from seed to use or ingestion by a consumer,
which includes uniform health and safety standards designed to implement quality
control, a labeling and a track-and-trace program, and other consumer protections,
which mitigates against some of the potential adverse impacts identified by the City
Council; and

(k) An effective regulatory system governing cannabis in the City of Willows as
provided in this chapter, will address potential adverse impacts to the public health,
welfare, and safety, thereby allowing commercial cannabis activity and other use of
cannabis and cannabis products consistent with California law.

9.20.015 Purpose and Intent.

It is the purpose and intent of this chapter for the City Council to exercise its police
powers derived from Section 7 of Article Xl of the California Constitution and State law
to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents and businesses of

the City of Willows by regulating cannabis activities within the City’s jurisdictional limits,
unless preempted by Federal or State law.

9.20.020 Definitions.

For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply:

(@) “A-license” means a license issued by the State of California for the sale of
cannabis or cannabis products that are intended for adults who are 21 years of age and

older and who do not possess a physician’s recommendation.

(b)  “Applicant” means a person who is required to file an application for a permit or
license under this chapter, including an individual owner, managing partner, officer of a

Pagedl0



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

corporation, or any other operator, manager, employee, or agent of a retail
establishment or dispensary.

(c) “AUMA” refers to the California law entitled “Control, Regulate and Tax Adult Use
of Marijuana Act of 2016,” also known as Proposition 64, and any regulations
promulgated thereunder.

(d) “Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis
indica, or Cannabis ruderalis, whether growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin,
whether crude or purified, extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound,
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin.
“Cannabis” also means the separated resin, whether crude or purified, obtained from
cannabis. “Cannabis” does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced
from the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound,
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the
resin extracted therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is
incapable of germination. The terms “cannabis” and “marijuana” may be used
interchangeably herein, and both shall have the meaning specified here.

(e) “Cannabis business” means a business or enterprise engaged in any commercial
cannabis activity.

W} “Cannabis business owner” means any of the following:

(1) Each person or entity having an ownership interest in a commercial
cannabis business other than a security interest, lien, or encumbrance on
property that will be used by the commercial cannabis business;

(2) Each person or entity applying for a commercial cannabis license, or having
an ownership interest in an entity applying for a commercial cannabis license, in
the City of Willows.

(3) The chief executive officer of a nonprofit or other entity, or any person or
entity with an aggregate ownership interest of five percent (5%) or more in such
entity.

(4) A member of the board of directors of a nonprofit or other entity.

(5) Each person who participates in the direction, control, or management of
the commercial cannabis business.

(g9 “Cannabis product” means marijuana or cannabis that has undergone a process
whereby the plant material has been transformed into a concentrate, including, but not
limited to, concentrated cannabis, or an edible or topical product containing cannabis, or
marijuana and other ingredients.

(h)  “Caregiver” shall have the same meaning as “primary caregiver.”

(i) “Church” means a structure or leased portion of a structure which is used
primarily for religious worship and related religious activities.

)] “City” means the City of Willows.

(k) “Commercial cannabis activity” includes cultivation, possession, manufacture,
distribution, processing, storing, laboratory testing, labeling, transportation, research
and development, delivery or sale of cannabis or cannabis products for commercial
purposes, whether for profit or nonprofit.

() “Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting,
drying, curing, grading, trimming, or processing of cannabis.

(m) “Customer” means a natural person 21 years of age or older or a natural person

Page 1] Z 9 Z



19¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

18 years of age or older who possesses a physician’s recommendation, or a primary
caregiver.

(n)  “Cultivation site” means a location where cannabis is planted, grown, harvested,
dried, cured, graded, or timmed, or a location where any combination of those activities
occurs.

(0) “Day care center” has the same meaning as in Section 1596.76 of the Health and
Safety Code.

(p)  “Deliver” or “Delivery” shall have the same meaning as set forth in Business and
Professions Code Section 26001 and Health and Safety Code section 11009. “Deliver”
or “Delivery” as used in this chapter shall not include the transfer of cannabis to a
patient by a primary caregiver, or the transfer of bulk cannabis or cannabis product by a
transporter to or from a licensed dispensary or retail business for resale.

(@) “Dispensary” means a retail establishment, facility or location holding an M-
license issued by the State of California where the primary purpose is to dispense
medical cannabis or medical cannabis products. A “dispensary” shall not include
dispensing of medical cannabis by primary caregivers to qualified patients in the
following locations and uses, as long as the location of such uses is otherwise regulated
by this code or applicable law: a qualified patient’s or caregiver’'s place of residence, a
clinic licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a
health care facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety
Code, a residential care facility for persons with chronic life-threatening illness licensed
pursuant to Chapter 3.01 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential care
facility for the elderly licensed pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the Health and
Safety Code, a residential hospice, or a home health agency licensed pursuant to
Chapter 8 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, as long as any such use
complies strictly with applicable law including, but not limited to, Health and Safety Code
Section 11362.5 et seq.

(n “Juvenile” or “minor” means any natural person who is under the age of 21 years.

(s) “License” means an authorization issued by the City of Willows, subject to all
terms and conditions under which such license may be issued, authorizing a licensee to
engage in the retail business of selling medical or non-medical cannabis and cannabis
products at a specified location within the City.

) “Licensee” means any person or entity holding a license to sell medical or non-
medical cannabis and cannabis products in the City under this chapter.

(u)  “Manufacture” means to compound, blend, extract, infuse, or otherwise make or
prepare a cannabis product.

(v)  “Marijuana” as used in this chapter shall have the same meaning as “cannabis”
set forth in subsection (c) above.

(w) “MAUCRSA” means the Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and
Safety Act of 2017.

(x) “M-license” means a State of California license issued for commercial cannabis
activity involving medicinal cannabis and cannabis products.

(y) “MCRSA’ refers to the California law entitled Medical Cannabis Regulation and
Safety Act.

(22  “Medicinal or medical cannabis” or “medicinal or medical cannabis product”
means cannabis or a cannabis product, respectively, intended to be sold for use
pursuant to the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 215), found at Section
11362.5 of the Health and Safety Code, by a medicinal cannabis patient in California
who possesses an identification card issued by the California Department of Public

Paged2



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

Health, Glenn County Department of Public Health, or a physician’s recommendation.
(aa) “Owner” means the title holder to a parcel of real estate.

(ab) “Permit” refers to an authorization issued by the City to a person as described in
chap. 9.20.040 to cultivate cannabis for personal use.

(ac) “Permittee” means any natural person holding a permit issued by the City to
engage in cultivation of not more than six (6) cannabis plants in accordance with chap.
9.20.040.

(ad) “Person” includes any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association,
corporation, collective, limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver,
syndicate, or any other group or combination acting as a unit, and the plural as well as
the singular.

(ae) “Physician’s recommendation” means a recommendation by a physician and
surgeon that a patient may use cannabis provided in accordance with the
Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 215), found at Section 11362.5 of the
Health and Safety Code.

(af) “Premises” means the designated structure or structures and land specified in an
application that is owned, leased, or otherwise held under the control of the applicant or
licensee where the commercial cannabis activity will be or is conducted. The premises
shall be a contiguous area and shall only be occupied by one licensee. “Premises” shall
also mean the designated residence structure or structures and land specified in an
application where the applicant cultivates cannabis for his or her personal use.

(ag) “Primary caregiver” has the same meaning as in Section 11362.7 of the Health
and Safety Code and who holds a valid caregiver identification card issued by the
California Department of Health or the Glenn County Department of Public Health.

(ah) “Purchaser” means the customer who is engaged in a transaction with a licensee
for purposes of obtaining cannabis or cannabis products.

(ai)  “Retail” means the sale of either medical or nonmedical cannabis or cannabis
products to the public in relatively small quantities for use or consumption rather than for
resale.

(@)) “Retail business” or “retail/dispensary cannabis business” means (1) the
commercial activity of engaging in the retail sales of cannabis or cannabis products, or
(2) the location upon or from which the retail sales of cannabis or cannabis products are
made.

(ak) “School” means an institution of learning for minors, whether public or private,
which offers instruction in those courses of study required by the California Education
Code or which is maintained pursuant to standards set by the State Board of Education.
This definition includes a nursery school, kindergarten, elementary school, junior high
school, senior high school, or a special institution of learning under the jurisdiction of the
State Department of Education, or a site that is planned for such school uses in the
City’s general plan, but it does not include a vocational or professional institution or any
institution of higher education, including a community or junior college, college or
university.

(al) “Sell,” “sale,” and “to sell” include any transaction whereby, for any consideration,
title to cannabis or cannabis products is transferred from one person to another in
exchange for payment.

(am) “Youth-oriented facility” shall mean elementary school, middle school, high
school, public park, and any establishment that advertises in a manner that identifies
the establishment as catering to or providing services primarily intended for minors, or
the individuals who regularly patronize, congregate or assemble at the establishment

Page 13, vga



€9¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

are predominantly minors. This shall not include a licensed daycare or preschool facility
that provides supervision of eight or fewer minor children, or children under ten years of
age.

9.20.025 Possession of cannabis or cannabis products.

Persons 21 years of age or older may possess, obtain, purchase and transport, without
receiving any compensation in any form whatsoever, not more than 28 %2 grams of
cannabis not in the form of concentrated cannabis, or not more than eight (8) grams of
concentrated cannabis, including cannabis products.

Chapter 9.20.030 Prohibited activities.
Sections:
9.20.031 Public Consumption of Cannabis
9.20.032 Prohibited activities; unlawful; nuisance.
9.20.033 Outdoor cultivation.

9.20.034 Commercial cultivation.

9.20.031 Public Consumption of Cannabis

The use or consumption, smoking or ingestion, of cannabis in any form, or any cannabis
product, is prohibited on any public property or in any facility or space to which
members of the public have access including, but not limited to, schools, playgrounds,
parks and other areas where children are present or may generally attend or
congregate. Consumption of cannabis or cannabis product on or about the premises of
any retail/dispensary cannabis business is also prohibited.

9.20.032 Prohibited activities; unlawful; nuisance.

The cultivation, manufacturing, distribution, delivery, dispensing, sale, possession and
use of cannabis and cannabis products in the City of Willows is expressly prohibited,
unless otherwise authorized by this code. It is hereby declared to be unlawful, a public
nuisance, and a violation of this chapter for any person to engage in such cultivation,
manufacturing, distribution, delivery, dispensing, sale, possession and use of cannabis
and cannabis products in the City of Willows, unless otherwise authorized by this code.
It is further hereby declared to be unlawful, a public nuisance, and a violation of this
chapter for any person owning, leasing, occupying, or having charge or possession of
any premises or parcel within any zoning district in the City of Willows to cause or allow
such premises or parcel to be used for the cultivation, manufacturing, distribution,
delivery, dispensing, sale, possession and use of cannabis and cannabis products,
unless such activity is otherwise authorized by this code.

9.20.033 Outdoor cultivation.
It is hereby declared to be unlawful, a public nuisance, and a violation of this chapter for
any person owning, leasing, occupying, or having charge or possession of any parcel

within any zoning district in the city to engage in, cause or allow such premises to be
used for the outdoor cultivation of marijuana plants.

Paged4



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

9.20.034 Commercial cultivation.

It is hereby declared to be unlawful, a public nuisance, and a violation of this chapter for
any person owning, leasing, occupying, or having charge or possession of any parcel
within any zoning district in the City to engage in, cause or allow the cultivation of more
than six (6) cannabis plants on any parcel within the City of Willows.

Chapter 9.20.040 Cannabis Cultivation
Sections:
9.20.041 Purpose and intent.
9.20.042 Definitions.
9.20.043 Cultivation of cannabis for personal use.
9.20.044 Cultivation of marijuana restricted.

9.20.045 Public nuisance prohibited.

9.20.041 Purpose and intent.
The City Council finds as follows:

A. Purpose and intent. The purpose and intent of this chapter is to regulate the
cultivation of cannabis for personal use in a manner that protects the health, safety and
welfare of the residents who cultivate and the community consistent with State and
federal law. This chapter is not intended to give any person unfettered legal authority to
grow cannabis; it is intended to regulate the personal cultivation of cannabis when it is
authorized by California law.

B. Applicability. The cultivation of cannabis for personal use in the City of Willows
shall be controlled and regulated by the provisions of this chapter. Cultivation of more
than six (6) cannabis plants is deemed commercial cultivation. All commercial
cultivation is prohibited in the City of Willows pursuant to chap. 9.20.034.

C. Nonconflicting Enactment. No part of this chapter shall be deemed to conflict with
federal law as contained in the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. Section 800 et
seq., nor to otherwise permit any activity that is prohibited under that Act or any other
local, state or federal law, statute, rule or regulation.

9.20.042 Definitions.
As used herein the following definitions shall apply:

A. “Authorized grower” means a natural person twenty-one years and older who is
authorized by, and in compliance with, federal or state law to cultivate cannabis indoors
for personal or medical use, and who obtains a permit from the City authorizing
cultivation of cannabis for personal use.

B. “Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying,
curing, grading, trimming, or otherwise processing of marijuana plants or any part
thereof.

C. “Fully enclosed and secure structure” means a fully enclosed space within a

building that complies with the California Building Code (“CBSC”), as adopted in the City
of Willows, or if exempt from the permit requirements of the CBSC, that has a complete

Page 1%6 9 9 Z



G9¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

roof, a foundation, slab or equivalent base to which the floor is secured by bolts or
similar attachments, is secure against unauthorized entry, is accessible only through
one or more lockable doors, and which interior is not visible from a public right-of-way or
any other parcel of property. Walls and roofs must be constructed of solid materials that
cannot be easily broken through, such as two-inch by four-inch nominal or thicker studs
overlaid with three-eighths inch or thicker plywood or the equivalent. Plastic sheeting,
regardless of gauge, or similar products do not satisfy this requirement. If indoor grow
lights or air filtration systems are used, they must comply with the California building,
electrical, and fire codes as adopted in the City of Willows.

D. “Immature plant” means a cannabis plant, whether male or female, that has not yet
flowered and which does not yet have buds that are readily observed by unaided visual
examination.

E. “Indoors” means within a fully enclosed and secure structure as that structure is
defined in subsection C of this section.

F. *“Mature plant’ means a cannabis plant, whether male or female, that has flowered
and which has buds that are readily observed by unaided visual examination.

G. “Outdoor’ means any location within the City of Willows that is not within a fully
enclosed and secure structure as defined in subsection C of this section.

H. “Parcel” means real property assigned a separate parcel number by the Glenn
County assessor.

I.  “Permit’ refers to a permit issued to a person as described in this chap. 9.20.040, et
seq. Only one (1) permit may be issued for each parcel, without regard to the number
of residents or qualified patients residing on that parcel.

J. “Permittee” means any natural person holding a permit issued by the City of
Willows to engage in cultivation of not more than six (6) cannabis plants.

K. “Private residence” means a house, apartment unit, mobile home, or other similar
dwelling unit.

9.20.043 Cultivation of cannabis for personal use.

When authorized by state law, an authorized grower shall be allowed to cultivate
cannabis only in a private residence or on the grounds of such residence, only indoors,
and only for personal use, subject to the following regulations:

A. The cannabis cultivation area shall be located indoors within a residential structure
and shall not exceed fifty square feet and not exceed ten feet in height, nor shall it come
within twelve inches of the ceiling or any cultivation lighting. Cultivation in a greenhouse
or other enclosed structure on the property of the residence but not physically part of
the home is allowed, as long as it is fully enclosed, secure, not visible from a public
right-of-way or other parcel of property, and meeting all requirements in this chapter.

B. Not more than six (6) cannabis plants, mature or immature, are permitted for
personal cultivation at any one time under this chapter.

C. Cannabis cultivation lighting shall not exceed one thousand two hundred watts
(1,200) in total for the total cultivation area within the residence.

D. Only one (1) permit may be issued for each parcel, without regard to the number of
residents or qualified patients residing in or on that parcel, and no more than six (6)
cannabis plants may be cultivated at any time on any parcel.

E. An owner of real property may prohibit the cultivation of cannabis on such property.

F. The use of gas products such as but not limited to CO2, butane, methane, or any

Pagesl6



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

other flammable or nonflammable gas for cannabis cultivation or processing is
prohibited.

G. There shall be no exterior visibility or evidence of cannabis cultivation outside the
private residence, or other structure, from the public right-of-way or other parcel of
property, including but not limited to any cannabis plants, equipment used in the
growing and cultivation operation, odors and any light emanating from cultivation
lighting.

H. The permittee shall reside full-time in the residence where the cannabis cultivation
occurs.

I.  The permittee shall not participate in cannabis cultivation in any other location within
the City of Willows.

J. The residence shall include fully functional and usable kitchen, bathroom, and
bedroom areas for their intended use by the resident authorized grower, and the
premises shall not be used primarily or exclusively for cannabis cultivation.

K. The cannabis cultivation area shall be in compliance with the current adopted
edition of the California Building Code Section 1203.4, Natural Ventilation, or Section
402.3, Mechanical Ventilation (or equivalent), as amended from time to time.

L. The City’s building official may require additional specific standards to meet the
California Building Code and Fire Code, including but not limited to installation of fire
suppression sprinklers or upgrade of electrical service.

M. Cannabis cultivation shall not result in a nuisance or adversely affect the health,
welfare, or safety of the resident or nearby residents by creating dust, glare, heat, noise,
noxious gases, odors, fire danger, smoke, traffic, vibration, or other impacts, or be
hazardous due to use or storage of materials, processes, products or wastes.

N. Cannabis in excess of twenty-eight and one-half (28 ¥2) grams produced by plants
kept for indoor personal cultivation under this chapter must be kept in a securely-locked
space on the grounds of the private residence which space is not accessible to minors
and is not visible from the public right-of-way.

9.20.044 Cultivation of marijuana restricted.

A. Commercial cultivation of cannabis is prohibited in the City of Willows.

B. Cultivation of more than six (6) cannabis plants is prohibited in the City of Willows.
C. Outdoor cultivation of cannabis is prohibited in the City of Willows.

D. No person shall grow cannabis in the City of Willows until and unless they first
secure a permit from the City of Willows and pay such fee(s) as may be required and
set by resolution of the City Council.

E. Itis hereby declared to be unlawful, a public nuisance and a violation of this
chapter for any person owning, leasing, occupying, or having charge or possession of
any parcel within the city to cause or allow such parcel to be used for the cultivation of
marijuana, unless the person is authorized by state law to grow marijuana for a
specifically authorized purpose within a private residence in a residential zone, and
such authorized grower is complying with all requirements of this chapter.

9.20.045 Public nuisance prohibited.
It is hereby declared to be unlawful and a public nuisance for any person owning,
leasing, occupying, or having charge or possession of any parcel within the city to

create a public nuisance in the course of cultivating marijuana plants or any part thereof
in any location, indoor or outdoor. A public nuisance may be deemed to exist, if:

Page 17, 8 9 Z



L9¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

A. Such activity produces odors which are disturbing to people of reasonable
sensitivity residing or present on adjacent or nearby property or areas open to the
public;

B. Such activity results in repeated responses to the parcel by law enforcement
personnel;

C. Such activity causes repeated disruption to the free passage of persons or vehicles
in the neighborhood, excessive noise which is disturbing to people of normal sensitivity
on adjacent or nearby property or areas open to the public;

D. Such activity produces any other impacts on the neighborhood which are disruptive
of normal activity in the area including, but not limited to, grow lighting visible outside
the dwelling, excessive vehicular traffic or parking occurring at or near the dwelling, and
excessive noise emanating from the dwelling; or

E. There is growing and cultivation of marijuana outdoors or in such location as to
visible by neighboring properties or the public rights of way.

Chapter 9.20.050 Residential Cultivation Permits, Enforcement, Penalties
Sections:
9.20.050 Residential Cultivation
9.20.051 Permit Required
9.20.052 Residential Cultivation Permits
9.20.053 Review and Issuance.
9.20.054 Permit Renewal.
9.20.055 Denials, Suspensions and Revocations.
9.20.056 Appeal of Denials, Revocations and Suspensions.
9.20.057 Penalties
9.20.058 Regulations and Enforcement.
9.20.059 Public Nuisance
9.20.060 Enforcement
9.20.061 Right of entry for enforcement officer.
9.20.062 Abatement.
9.20.063 Summary Abatement.
9.20.064 Alternative remedies.
9.20.065 Other Violations.
9.20.066 Penalties not exclusive — violation constitutes a crime.

9.20.066 Severability.

Paged8



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

9.20.050 Residential Cultivation

California law allows a person 21 years of age or older to cultivate for personal use up
to six (6) cannabis plants, subject to additional limitations. Health & Safety Code §
11362.2(b)(1) authorizes a city to enact and enforce regulations to reasonably regulate
such personal cultivation. The City of Willows establishes the following regulations to
protect the health, safety and welfare of personal cultivators and the community at
large, while not prohibiting or banning such personal cultivation.

9.20.051 Permit Required.

Every person seeking to cultivate cannabis for personal use must first apply and be
issued the appropriate permit to engage in such cultivation within the City of Willows.
All such personal cultivation shall comply with this chapter 9.20.050, et seq.

9.20.052 Residential Cultivation Permits.
A. The form and content of the application for a residential cultivation permit shall be
specified by the City Manager and shall include, at a minimum, the following information

sworn by the applicant to be true and correct under penalty of perjury:

1. The name, address, and telephone number of the applicant, together with
a photocopy of the applicant’s driver’s license or State-issued identification card.

2. The address of the property on which the residential cultivation is
proposed.
3. Affirmation that the applicant is a full-time resident of the property on

which the cultivation is proposed.

4, The name, address and telephone number(s) of the owner(s) of such
property, together with the notarized written consent of such owner if not the applicant.

5. A description of the area within the property in which the cultivation is
proposed to occur, including a floor plan, specifically identifying exit points, of the
building in which the cultivation is proposed.

6. A certification from a licensed electrician that the electrical service of the
property is sufficient to service the proposed cultivation, and in compliance with all state
and local building codes.

7. Affirmation that the applicant does not cultivate cannabis in any other
location within the City of Willows.

8. Consent of the applicant for entry to the premises by the City of Willows
for the purposes of inspection and verification, with or without notice.

B. Together with a completed application, applicant shall pay a non-refundable
Residential Cultivation Permit Fee.

C. The City Council shall establish such Residential Cultivation Permit Fee, which
may be adjusted from time to time, by resolution in such amount(s) as reasonably
calculated to cover the City’s costs incurred in processing such applications, conducting
inspections, and enforcing the provisions of this chapter.

D. The term of initially-issued Residential Cultivation Permits shall be one (1) year.
9.20.053 Review and Issuance.

A. Applications for Residential Cultivation Permits shall be filed with the city

manager's office. Applications shall include all of the information required in chap.
9.20.052, any other information reasonably requested by the city manager, and shall be

Page 19, 0 LZ



69¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

accompanied by a nonrefundable Residential Cultivation Permit fee. A request for
additional information by the city manager shall be “reasonable” if it is intended to elicit
more information or clarification about the applicant, property ownership, or other
information related to the proposed location of the cultivation or the safety of such
location and facility.

B. If the city manager determines that the application is incomplete or has been
completed improperly, the city manager shall notify the applicant within ten (10) days of
application submittal. The city manager may grant the applicant an extension of up to
thirty (30) days to complete the application. In the event the applicant fails to provide
the information necessary to complete the application within the extension granted by
the city manager, the application shall lapse and the application fee shall be forfeited to
the City of Willows.

C. If the city manager determines that the Residential Cultivation Permit application
is complete and, on the face of the application, there appears to be no basis for denial
of the permit, the city manager shall issue the Residential Cultivation Permit.

9.20.054 Permit Renewal.

A. The holder of a Residential Cultivation Permit shall, no less than thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration of the then-current permit file an application for renewal of the
permit. The application shall include all of the information, appropriately updated,
required in the initial application, together with a Residential Cultivation Permit renewal
fee.

B. Upon receiving a renewal application, the city manager shall determine whether
the application is complete. If the city manager determines that the application is
incomplete or has been completed improperly, the city manager shall notify the
applicant within ten (10) days. The city manager may grant the applicant an extension
up to 10 days to complete the renewal application.

C. If the city manager determines that the application is complete, and there are no
grounds for denying the renewal application pursuant to this chap. 9.20.050, the city
manager shall so notify the applicant. The city manager may then issue a renewal of
the permit for a two-year period.

9.20.055 Denials, Suspensions and Revocations.

A. Incomplete Application. If the application is incomplete, or remains incomplete
upon the expiration of any extension, the city manager may deny the Residential
Cultivation Permit application or renewal thereof. If the city manager denies the
application for this reason, written notice of denial shall be served on the applicant.
Notwithstanding any provisions of this code to the contrary, the decision of the city
manager shall be final and not subject to administrative appeal.

B. Suspension of Permit.

1.  If the city manager deems continuation of the permittee’s Residential
Cultivation Permit will cause a significant threat to the health, safety or welfare of the
public, the city manager may suspend the permit and all rights and privileges
thereunder. The permittee must immediately cease all cannabis cultivation immediately
upon receiving notice of the suspension of his or her permit.

2. The city manager shall give notice to the permittee of his or her intent to
suspend a permit in the same manner as notice of permit denial and provide the city
clerk with a copy of the notice.

3. Such notification shall inform the permittee of the grounds for the
suspension, together with action(s) necessary to cure or correct such grounds, including
a period of time not to exceed thirty (30) days for such cure or correction to be
completed.

Pagef0



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

4. Such suspension shall remain in effect, and the permit holder must cease all
cannabis cultivation, unless and until the basis for which the suspension was imposed
has been cured or corrected, and/or the term of the permit expires, in which event the
permittee’s authorization to engage in cultivation of cannabis for personal use has
ended.

C. Denial or Revocation of Permit.

1. The granting of a Residential Cultivation Permit or a renewal thereof may be
disapproved, and an existing permit revoked if:

a. The applicant or permittee has knowingly made a false statement in the
application or in any reports or other documents furnished to the City.

b. The property owner withholds or revokes consent for the cultivation of
marijuana on the property.

c. The permittee has violated the terms of this code or California law by
cultivating more than six (6) cannabis plants at any one time.

d. The permittee has engaged in the sale or distribution of cannabis or
cannabis products.

e. Excessive traffic, neighborhood and/or law enforcement activity at the
location of the applicant’s or permittee’s cultivation of cannabis.

f. The granting or renewing of the permit would perpetuate or encourage any of
the following:

(i) Engaging in the sale or distribution of cannabis or cannabis products;
(i) Providing cannabis or cannabis products to minors;

(i) Diversion of cannabis or cannabis products to jurisdictions outside of
the State where cannabis and cannabis products are unlawful under State or
local law;

(iv) Trafficking of other illegal drugs or facilitation of other illegal activity;

(v) Violence and the use of firearms in the cultivation or distribution of
cannabis and cannabis products;

(vi) The applicant or permittee has been sanctioned by a licensing
authority or other city or county for unauthorized commercial cannabis activity; or

(vii) The applicant or permittee violates any provision of the MCRSA,
AUMA, MAUCRSA, this chapter or any other permits issued by the City for
cannabis activity.

g. The applicant or permittee has been convicted of an offense that is
substantially related to the permittee’s qualifications for safely cultivating cannabis for
personal use with due care for the residents of the property and the community at large,
which includes but is not limited to:

(i) A felony conviction for hiring, employing, or using a minor in
transporting, carrying, selling, giving away, preparing for sale, or peddling any
controlled substance to a minor; or selling, offering to sell, furnishing, offering to
furnish, administering, or giving any controlled substance to a minor; or

(i) A felony conviction for drug trafficking with an enhancement pursuant
to Health and Safety Code Section 11370.4 or 113798.

Page 2$9

¢Ld



A7

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

h. Failure to pay required City fees.

2. Disapproval of Application. If the City Manager disapproves an application for
Residential Cultivation Permit or renewal therecof, or revokes an existing permit, he or
she shall notify the applicant in writing, stating the reasons for the disapproval.
Notification of disapproval shall be delivered by first class mail to the applicant. Service
of such notice shall be deemed complete two (2) business days following the deposit of
the notice in the U.S. Mail. A copy of such notification shall be filed with the city clerk.
No permit shall issue unless a successful appeal of the disapproval is made within the
requisite time frame.

3. A permittee whose permit is revoked must immediately cease all cannabis
cultivation immediately upon receiving notice of the revocation of his or her permit.

9.20.056 Appeal of Denials, Revocations and Suspensions.

A. Within fifteen (15) days after the city manager serves notification of disapproval for
any reason (other than incomplete applications), or revocation or suspension of an
existing permit, an applicant/permittee may appeal the denial, revocation or suspension
by notifying the city clerk in writing of the appeal, the reasons for the appeal, and
depositing all applicable fees and costs associated with the appeal.

B. The city clerk shall set a hearing on the appeal and shall fix a date and time certain,
within thirty (30) days after the receipt of the applicant’s appeal, unless the City and the
applicant agree to a longer time, to consider the appeal. The city clerk shall provide
notice of the date, time and place of hearing, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of
the hearing.

C. The city attorney shall appoint a hearing officer to hear the appeal and determine
the order of procedure, and rule on all objections to admissibility of evidence. The
applicant and the city manager shall each have the right to submit documents, call and
examine witnesses, cross-examine witnesses and argue their respective positions. The
proceeding shall be informal, and the strict rules of evidence shall not apply, and all
evidence shall be admissible which is of the kind that reasonably prudent persons rely
upon in making decisions.

D. The hearing officer shall issue a written decision within fifteen (15) days after the
close of the hearing. The decision of the hearing officer shall be final.

9.20.057 Penalties

A. A violation of this chapter shall punishable as a misdemeanor, which shall be
punishable by a fine not to exceed $500, or by imprisonment in the county jail for not
more than six months, or by both fine and imprisonment. Each day of engaging in any
of the prohibited activities shall constitute a separate offense.

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing section, cultivation of more than six (6) cannabis
plants shall be a felony if:

1. The offender had or has a serious violent felony(ies) on his or her record,;
2. The offender is a registered sex offender;

3. The offender has two (2) or more prior convictions for cultivating more than
six (6) marijuana plants; or

4. The offender violates certain California environmental laws in their marijuana
cultivation activities.

C. Forfeit of the privilege of personal cultivation of cannabis in the City of Willows.

Page®2



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

D. The penalties herein are cumulative and not in place of any penalties, fines or
costs imposed pursuant to chapter 8 of this code.

E. Any violation of this chapter or regulation promulgated under this chapter is hereby
declared to be a public nuisance.

9.20.058 Regulations and Enforcement.

A. City Manager or Designee. Any action required by the city manager under this
chapter may be fulfilled by the city manager’s designee. In addition to City officers and
employees, such designee may include, but is not limited to, officials of the Glenn
County Sheriff's Office, attorneys or consultants.

B. The city manager is authorized to coordinate implementation and enforcement of
this chapter and may promulgate appropriate regulations for such purposes.

9.20.059 Public Nuisance

Any violation of this chapter is declared to be a public nuisance, subject to redress as
provided for in this title.

9.20.060 Enforcement.

A. This title shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of this chapter 9.20 of Title 9
and Title 8 of the Willows Municipal Code.

B. The city manager shall, as he deems necessary, instruct the chief of police, Glenn
County Sheriff, fire chief, director of public works, or code enforcement officer to abate
any nuisance caused by a violation of this chapter; the cost thereof to be levied and
collected as provided for in Chapter 8 of this code.

9.20.061 Right of entry for enforcement officer.

A. Whenever an enforcement officer has reason to believe that a nuisance exists or
that an inspection is necessary to enforce any provision of this chapter, the officer may
enter the premises at any reasonable time to perform the inspection or any other duty
imposed by this title. The enforcement officer shall provide reasonable notice of the
need to enter and inspect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event there is
reasonable suspicion of the existence of a nuisance or violation that presents a threat of
imminent danger to the health, safety or welfare of the permittee or the community at
large, the enforcement officer or other City official may enter the premises at any time
without notice, and the applicant shall consent to such entry as a condition of qualifying
for the Residential Cultivation permit.

B. The enforcement officer shall present proper identification, state the purpose of the
visit and request permission of the owner or responsible person to enter the premises. If
entry is refused, the enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy provided
by law to secure entry. Any such refusal shall be grounds for suspension or revocation
of the permittee’s permit.

C. When the enforcement officer has first obtained a proper inspection warrant or
other remedy provided by law to secure entry, no owner or responsible person shall fail
or neglect, after proper request is made as provided in this title, to promptly permit entry
therein by the enforcement officer for the purpose of inspection and examination
pursuant to this title.

9.20.062 Abatement.
Public nuisances in violation of this chapter may be abated by demolition, removal,
destruction, suspension or revocation of permit, or other appropriate action as

determined by the city manager. Such nuisances may be abated pursuant to WMC
8.10 or, in the event of imminent or immediate dangers to the health, safety, welfare and

Page 2;4 V A Z



€L¢

Crry OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

morals of the citizens of the City of Willows, summarily abated pursuant to chapter
WMC 8.10.160.

9.20.063 Summary abatement.

A. Violations reasonably deemed by the City to constitute imminent or immediate
dangers to the health, safety, welfare and morals of the citizens of the City of Willows
may necessitate inmediate correction. Accordingly, such violations, conditions or uses
may be summarily abated by the City pursuant to WMC 8.10.160 and this chapter.

B. Such abatement shall not occur unless the city manager and/or his/her designate
finds, from a preponderance of the evidence, that such an imminent or immediate
danger exists or is believed to exist on the basis of available evidence, and has
provided or attempted to provide the owner of the property in question, or the person
responsible for permitting the danger to occur, reasonable notice within which and
direction to correct the condition, and the necessary corrective action has not taken
place. Forty-eight (48) hours shall be presumed to be reasonable notice in the absence
of evidence to the contrary. Notice hereunder need not take any particular form, and
may be dispensed with if the exigencies of the situation require immediate abatement
and/or providing reasonable notice is impracticable.

C. The cost and expenses of such summary abatement shall be made a lien on the
property and shall be collected pursuant to the procedure found in WMC 8.10.130
through 8.10.150.

9.20.064 Alternative remedies.

Nothing in the foregoing sections shall be deemed to prevent the City Council from
ordering the city attorney or Glenn County District Attorney to commence a civil or
criminal proceeding to abate a public nuisance under applicable Civil or Penal Code
provisions as an alternative to the proceedings set forth herein. Nothing herein shall
prevent the City from abating a nuisance pursuant to any other procedure established
by city ordinance or state law.

9.20.065 Other Violations.

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, deface, or mutilate any notice, order,
statement, or resolution posted or required in this chapter.

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to obstruct, impede, or interfere with any owner
or his agent or with any representative of the City of Willows when engaged in
performing any act reasonably necessary for the execution of the order of abatement.

C. It shall be unlawful for an owner or occupant of any premises in the City to permit a
condition declared by the City to be a public nuisance to exist upon the premises.

D. Any person who shall violate this chap. 9.20.065 shall be subject to the penalties
set forth in WMC chap. 1.05.080.

9.20.066 Penalties not exclusive — violation constitutes a crime

The remedies and penalties provided herein are cumulative, alternative and
nonexclusive. The use of one does not prevent the use of any other criminal, civil, or
administrative remedy or penalty authorized by, or set forth in, the Willows Municipal
Code. None of the penalties or remedies authorized by, or set forth in, the Willows
Municipal Code shall prevent the City from using any other penalty or remedy under
state statute which may be available to enforce this section or to abate a public
nuisance. Violation of this chapter shall constitute a crime punishable as a
misdemeanor or infraction in the discretion of the city attorney.

9.20.067 Severability.

Page24



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
chapter is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such a decision shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council hereby
declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this chapter irrespective of the unconstitutionality or
invalidity of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase.

Chapter 9.20.070 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business Licenses.
Sections:
9.20.070 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business Licenses.
9.20.071 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License applications.
9.20.072 Renewal.
9.20.073 Transfer of License or Modification to License.
9.20.074 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License fees.
9.20.075 Denials, Revocations and Suspensions.

9.20.076 Appeal of Disapprovals, Revocations and Suspensions.

9.20.070 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business Licenses.

A. The City of Willows authorizes, subject to the conditions set forth in this code, the
commercial sale of cannabis and cannabis products for medical and non-medical uses.
Such authorization, and any license issued hereunder, does not include the
manufacturing or delivery of cannabis or cannabis products, nor the sale of cannabis or
cannabis products at any location other than that for which a license is issued by the
City of Willows.

B. The City Council shall, by resolution, limit the number(s) Retail/Dispensary
Cannabis Business licenses to be issued within the City of Willows in order to avoid an
excessive concentration of cannabis businesses in the City of Willows.

C. The City Council may, by resolution, establish special conditions for
Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business licenses.

D. Each retail/dispensary cannabis business seeking to operate within the City of
Willows must first apply and be issued the appropriate license to operate within the City
of Willows. The license is specific to the location where the commercial cannabis activity
business will be operating. Multiple operating locations for the same cannabis business
will require separate licenses.

E. Prior to being issued a license to operate within the City of Willows, a retail
cannabis business applicant must first hold an A-license issued by the State of
California, and a dispensary cannabis business applicant must first hold an M-license
issued by the State of California. A licensee which holds both an A-license and an M-
license may conduct cannabis sales from the same premises, but will require separate
licenses from the City of Willows.

F. No license shall be issued if the cannabis activity is not a permitted land use in the
City.

Page 25, 9 LZ



GL¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

G. For the convenience and efficiency of both the applicant and the City, applications
for Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business licenses shall be processed in three (3)
phases: (1) a preliminary application intended to confirm the eligibility and suitability of
the applicant(s), as determined in the sole discretion of the City of Willows; (2)
significant information about the proposed site of the business, proposed operations,
security and other detailed business operations; and (3) final consideration and
approval/disapproval by the City Council.

9.20.071 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License applications.
A. Phase one applications for Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License.

1. Phase one applications for Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business Licenses
shall be filed with the city manager's office. Applications shall include all of the
information required in subsection 2 of this section, any other information reasonably
requested by the city manager, and shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable phase
one license application fee, established by resolution of the City Council in an amount
reasonably calculated to reimburse the City for costs and expenses incurred including,
but not limited to, fully burdened staff time in processing applicant’s license phase
application. The phase one license application fee shall be in addition to any other fee
imposed by this code. A request for additional information by the city manager shall be
“reasonable” if it is intended to elicit more information or clarification about the applicant,
its ownership, or background of the owners relevant to the ownership and/or operation
of a retail/dispensary cannabis business in the City.

2. The phase one application shall be signed by one or more owners
certifying that all of the information provided is true and correct under penalty of perjury,
and shall set forth in writing:

(@) Identity of the Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business. A description of the
statutory entity or business form that will serve as the legal structure for the business
and a copy of its formation and organizing documents, including but not limited to,
articles of incorporation, certificate of amendment, statement of information, articles of
association, bylaws, partnership agreement, operating agreement, and fictitious
business name statement. If a corporation, limited liability company, or a general or
limited partnership is a stockholder owning more than 5% of the stock or membership
interest of an applicant's business, or is one or more of the partners in an applicant’'s
business, the applicant shall set forth the names and addresses of each of the partners,
officers, directors, and stockholders of the corporation, limited liability company, or
general or limited partnership.

(b) Management Information.

(i) The name, address, telephone number, title, and function(s) of
each manager of the business.

(i) For each manager, a legible copy of one valid government-issued
form of photo identification, such as a state driver’s license, a passport issued by the
United States, or a permanent resident card.

(c)  Applicant's Phone Number and Mailing Address. The phone number and
address to which notice of action on the application and future correspondence is to be
mailed.

(d)  Previous Addresses. Previous addresses of the applicant for the past five
years immediately prior to the present address.

(e) Verification of Age. Evidence that the applicant and all managers of the
dispensary are at least 21 years of age.

f Criminal Background.

Pagez6



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

(i) A list of each misdemeanor and/or felony conviction, if any, of the
applicant, its owner(s) and manager(s), whether the conviction was by verdict, plea of
guilty, or plea of nolo contendere. The list shall, for each conviction, set forth the date of
arrest, the offense charged, and the offense of which the applicant or manager was
convicted.

(ii) The applicant, each owner and each manager shall consent to
fingerprinting and a criminal background investigation.

(9) Employee Information. Number of employees, volunteers, and other
persons who will work or provide services at the business.

(h)  State licenses. Copies of the state licenses relating to marijuana, including
cultivation licenses, the applicant holds, and/or a description of the state licenses the
application for which the applicant intends to apply.

(i) Plan of Operations. A plan describing how the business will operate
consistent with state law and the provisions of this chapter.

()] Business Description. A description of the proposed location, including the
street address and parcel number, the square footage, and the characteristics of the
neighborhood or surrounding area.

(k) Response to the Zoning Code. An explanation of how the business
complies or expects to comply with the Zoning Code, including, but not limited to, the
location requirements.

()] Compliance with Applicable Taxes. The applicant shall provide a current
copy of its business operations tax certificate and state sales tax seller's permit.

(m)  City Authorization. Authorization and consent for the city manager to seek
verification of the information contained within the application.

(n)  Statement of Property Owner's Consent. Consent to operate a cannabis
business at the proposed location, specifying the street address and parcel number,
from the owner or landlord, of the proposed location.

3. Review of phase one application.

(@)  Upon receiving a phase one application for a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis
Business License, the city manager shall determine whether the application is complete.
If the city manager determines that the application is incomplete or has been completed
improperly, the city manager shall notify the applicant within 30 days of application
submittal. The city manager may grant the applicant an extension of up to ten (10) days
to complete the phase one application.

(b) If the city manager determines that the phase one application is complete
and, on the face of the application, there appears to be no basis for denial of the permit,
the city manager shall notify the applicant that it may continue to phase two in the
application process.

(c) If the application is incomplete, or remains incomplete upon the expiration
of any extension, the city manager may deny the application on that ground. If the city
manager denies the phase one application, pursuant to the provisions of this section,
written notice of denial shall be served on the applicant. Notwithstanding any provisions
of this code to the contrary, the decision of the city manager shall be final and not
subject to administrative appeal.

B. Phase two applications for retail/dispensary cannabis business license.

Page 27, 8 AZ



LLE

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

1. If the city manager notifies the applicant that it may continue to phase two
in the application process, the applicant shall file a phase two application with the city
manager’s office, that includes the following:

(@) A nonrefundable phase two license application fee in an amount
established by resolution of the City Council in an amount reasonably calculated to
reimburse the City for costs and expenses incurred including, but not limited to, fully
burdened staff time in processing applicant’'s phase two license application. The phase
two license application fee shall be in addition to any other fee imposed by this code.

(b) Copies of State-issued A-license and/or M-license.

(©) Security Plan. A description and documentation of how the applicant will
secure the premises twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, and how
waste derived from any cannabis commercial activity will be disposed of in a manner to
ensure it may not be utilized for unlawful purposes. The security plan shall include, but
is not limited to, the following:

(i) Preventing individuals from remaining on the premises if they are not
engaged inactivity expressly related to the operations of the cannabis activity;

(i) Establishing limited access areas accessible only to authorized
personnel including security measures to both deter and prevent unauthorized
entrance into areas containing cannabis or cannabis products and theft of
cannabis or cannabis products;

(i) Storing all finished cannabis and cannabis products in a secured and
locked room, safe, or vault, and in a manner as to prevent diversion, theft, and
loss, except for limited amounts of cannabis used for display purposes, samples,
immediate sale, if applicable;

(iv) Providing tamper-proof and tamper-evident packaging for finished
cannabis product;

(v) Preventing off-site impacts to adjoining or near properties; and
(vi) Limiting the amount of cash on the premises.

(d)  Floor Plan. A scaled floor plan for each level of the entire building showing
the interior configuration of the building, including a statement of the total floor area
occupied by the business. The floor plan must include entrances, exits, restrooms,
waiting area, office space, storage, and area for the sale of cannabis to customers. The
floor plan must be professionally prepared by a licensed civil engineer or architect.

(e)  Site Plan. A scaled site plan of the parcel of real property on which the
business building is located, including the outline of all structures, driveways, parking
and landscape areas, and boundaries of the parcel. The site plan must be
professionally prepared by a licensed civil engineer or architect.

)] Accessibility Evaluation. A written evaluation of accessibility by the
physically disabled to and within the building and identification of any planned
accessibility improvements to comply with all state and federal disability access laws,
including, but not limited to, title 24 of the California Code of Regulations and the
Americans with Disabilities Act. The evaluation must be professionally prepared by a
licensed civil engineer or architect, or Certified Access Specialist (“CASp”).

(@@ Neighborhood Context Map. An accurate straight-line drawing depicting
the boundaries of the business property, the boundaries of all other properties within
1,000 feet of the business property, and the uses of those properties, specifically
including, but not limited to, any use identified in the location requirements of the Zoning
Code. The map must be professionally prepared by a licensed civil engineer or
architect.

Pagee8



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

(h) Lighting Plan. A lighting plan showing existing and proposed exterior and
interior lighting levels that would be the minimum necessary to provide adequate
security lighting for the use.

(i) Zoning Code Compliance. A copy of a valid conditional use permit
approved by the city’s planning commission for the proposed business location.

)] A copy of the business’s commercial general liability insurance policy and
all other insurance policies related to the operation of the business.

(k) A copy of the business’s annual budget for operations.

() A copy of the business’s most recent year's financial statement and tax
return.

(m)  Alist of the most recent, or proposed, prices for all products and services
provided by the business.

(n)  Consent to entry by a City representative at any time, with or without prior
notice and with or without reasonable cause, for the purpose of inspecting the premises
and monitoring business operations and confirming compliance with the law and license
conditions.

(o)  An affirmation, signed by each business owner and manager, under
penalty of perjury, that all sales shall be accurately and faithfully reported to the City of
Willows, that other financial information reasonably requested shall be timely provided,
that all taxes and fees will be properly calculated and paid as and when due. The
applicant shall also consent to the audit of the business’s books and financial records at
any time deemed necessary by the City of Willows, but not more frequent than once
each 180 days.

(p)  Applicant’s Certification. A statement dated and signed by each owner and
manager, under penalty of perjury, that the owner and manager has personal
knowledge of the information contained in the phase one and phase two applications,
that the information contained therein is true and correct, and that the applications have
been completed under their supervision.

(q) Other Information. Such other information as deemed necessary by the
city manager to demonstrate compliance with this code.

2. Review of phase two application.
(@) Complete Application.

0] Upon receiving a phase two application, the city manager shall
determine whether the application is complete. If the city manager determines
that the application is incomplete or has been completed improperly, the city
manager shall notify the applicant within 30 days of application submittal. The
city manager may grant the applicant an extension up to 10 days to complete the
phase two application.

(i) An application is not to be considered incomplete for purposes of
this subsection 2(a) if the sole document remaining to be filed is the conditional
use permit required to operate a retail/dispensary cannabis business in the City
of Willows.

(b) If the phase two application is incomplete, or remains incomplete upon the
expiration of any extension, the city manager may deny the application on that ground.
If the city manager denies the phase two application for being incomplete, pursuant to
the provisions of this section, written notice of denial shall be served on the applicant.
Notwithstanding any provisions of this code to the contrary, the decision of the city
manager shall be final and not subject to administrative appeal.

Page %%w O 8 Z



6.¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

(c)  The city manager shall notify the applicant that the application is complete
if he or she determines that all of the required information has been provided and that
the content and accuracy of the submitted documents is responsive to the
requirements. The completion date of a phase two application shall be the date when
the city manager notifies the applicant that it has received all of the information or
materials required. If the conditional use permit is not submitted to the city manager,
such notification shall advise the applicant that the otherwise complete application will
be held in abeyance pending receipt of the required conditional use permit for a period
not to exceed sixty (60) days.

C. Review by City Council.

1. When the city manager has determined that the application is complete,
including the issuance of a conditional use permit, the city manager shall have the
application placed on the next available meeting agenda of the City Council.

2. The City Council shall, in its sole discretion:

(a) Require any additional information deemed necessary or appropriate for
consideration of issuance of the license; or

(b)  Deny the application and state the grounds therefor; or

(c¢) By resolution, vote to issue the license, subject to any reasonable
conditions imposed by the City Council, upon applicant’s payment of the Business
Cannabis License Fee established by the City Council.

D. The term of an initially-issued Retail/Dispensary Business Cannabis License
shall be one (1) year.

9.20.072 Renewal.

A. An application for renewal of a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business license,
together with all applicable fees, must be submitted to the city manager at least ninety
(90) days before the expiration of the then-current license. Failure to submit a renewal
application at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of the then-current
license will result in the automatic expiration of the license on the expiration date.

B. Renewal applications shall update and correct any such information provided in the
initial phase one and phase two applications that is no longer correct, as well as an
affirmation by the business owners and managers, made under penalty of perjury, that
all of the information, as corrected, is accurate and correct.

C. The city manager shall compile such information and documents, as well as any
information pertaining to the licensee’s business operations which may reasonably
affect a determination regarding renewal of the business license.

D. The city manager shall place the renewal application, together with all relevant
information and documentation, on a City Council agenda approximately thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration of the then-current license.

E. The City Council shall, in its sole discretion:

1. Require any additional information deemed necessary or appropriate for
consideration of the renewal of the license; or

2. Deny the renewal application and state the grounds therefor; or
3. By resolution, vote to renew the license, subject to any reasonable

conditions imposed by the City Council, upon applicant’s payment of the then current
Business Cannabis License Fee.

Page#$0



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

F. The term of a renewed Retail/Dispensary Cannabis License shall be two (2) years,
subject the payment of the Business Cannabis License Fee for each year, in the
amount current at the time of the commencement of each year.

G. License renewal is subject to the laws and regulations effective at the time of
renewal, which may be substantially different than the regulations in place at the time of
initial issuance. and may require the submittal of additional information to ensure that
the new standards are met. No person shall have any entitlement or vested right to
receive a permit under this chapter.

F. The City of Willows, it Council Members, managers, employees, attorneys, agents
and representatives shall have no liability for any lost profits, costs, expenses,
damages, or relocation or demobilization costs, or other claims of any kind claimed to
have been suffered as the result of the denial or non-renewal of any application for a
Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License.

9.20.073 Transfer of License or Modification to License.

A. A Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License is nontransferable to another
person, entity or location, and no such transfer may be made except in accordance with
this section. Any such transfer made without the prior consent of the City of Willows
shall result in the revocation of the license. Any change in ownership of five percent
(5%) or more, singly or cumulatively, shall be considered a “change in ownership” and
constitute a “transfer” for purposes of this section.

B. Any requested transfer of an interest in a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business
License as a result of a change in ownership shall require the submittal of all of the
information regarding the proposed transferee(s) contained in a Phase One Application,
pursuant to chap. 9.20.071. In addition, all such proposed transferees shall execute
those consents and affirmations required in chap. 9.20.071 above.

C. Any requested transfer of a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License to
another location shall require the submittal of all of the information required in Phase
One and Phase Two Applications pursuant to chap. 9.20.071) Any licensee conducting
any cannabis business at a location other than as licensed by the City of Willows shall
have his/herl/its license immediately revoked.

D. Any modification of a Licensee’s business operations or to the premises to which
the license has been issued shall require the submittal of all information identifying and
describing the existing operation or premises affected by the proposed change, together
with all proposed changes.

E. The city manager shall place the transfer/modification application, together with all
relevant information and documentation, on a City Council agenda within thirty (30)
days after receiving such complete application.

F. The City Council shall, in its sole discretion:

1. Require any additional information deemed necessary or appropriate for
consideration of the transfer or modification of the license; or

2. Deny the transfer/modification application and state the grounds therefor;
or

3. By resolution, vote to approve the transfer or modification of the license,
subject to any reasonable conditions imposed by the City Council including, but not
limited to, a requirement that the applicant pay all expenses incurred by the City in
processing such application, in addition to payment of the Business Cannabis License
Transfer/Modification Fee and, if the license is transferred to a new business location,
the payment of an additional Business Cannabis License Fee.

G. Every such application for a transfer or modification of a Retail/Dispensary

Page 3}, 282



18¢

CrTYy OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

Cannabis Business License shall be accompanied by the payment of a Transfer or
Modification Fee established by the City Council in an amount reasonably calculated to
reimburse the City for costs and expenses incurred in processing such Transfer or
Modification application.

9.20.074 Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License fees and taxes.

A. For Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business Licenses the City Council shall
establish by resolution:

1. A Phase One Application Fee in an amount reasonably calculated to
reimburse the City for costs and expenses incurred including, but not limited to, fully
burdened staff time in processing applicant’s phase one license application.

2. A Phase Two Application Fee in an amount reasonably calculated to
reimburse the City for costs and expenses incurred including, but not limited to, fully
burdened staff time in processing applicant’s phase two license application.

3. A Cannabis Business License Fee, payable annually, authorizing the
licensee to engage in the business of sales of cannabis and cannabis produces in the
City of Willows.

4, A Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License Renewal Application Fee
in an amount reasonably calculated to reimburse the City for costs and expenses
incurred including, but not limited to, fully burdened staff time in processing applicant’s
license renewal application.

5. A Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License Transfer/Modification
Application Fee in an amount reasonably calculated to reimburse the City for costs and
expenses incurred including, but not limited to, fully burdened staff time in processing
applicant’s application for the transfer or application of a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis
Business License.

6. An Appeal Fee in an amount reasonably calculated to pay the full cost of
an appeal of the denial/disapproval of an application for a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis
Business License, or renewal thereof, or the revocation or suspension of any such
license, including but not limited to all staff and management time, legal fees, hearing
officer fees, document and record fees, and other associated costs and expenses.

el A Cannabis Business Tax reasonably calculated to reimburse the City for
costs and expenses incurred including, but not limited to, issuance of licenses and
maintenance of records, monitoring and inspections, preparation and submittal of
reports, collection of and accounting for fees and taxes, auditing, legal expenses,
enforcement actions, and other anticipated costs and expenses directly or indirectly
related to the licensee’s sales of cannabis and cannabis products in the City of Willows.

8. The fees set forth above shall be in addition to any other fee and/or tax
imposed by this code or law.

B. The City Council may, by resolution, adjust any fee required herein at any time,
which adjustment shall be effective on the date of the Council's adoption of the
resolution.

9.20.075 Denials, Revocations and Suspensions.

A Incomplete Application. If the license application is incomplete, or remains
incomplete upon the expiration of any extension, the city manager may deny the
Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License application or renewal thereof on that
ground. If the city manager denies the application, written notice of denial shall be
served on the applicant. Such service shall be deemed complete two (2) days following
its deposit in the U.S. Mail. Notwithstanding any provisions of this code to the contrary,
the decision of the city manager shall be final and not subject to administrative appeal.

Page®2



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

B. Suspension or Revocation of License.

1. If the city manager deems, based on all available facts and circumstances,
that continuation of the licensee’s Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License will
cause a significant threat to the health, safety or welfare of the public, the city manager
may suspend or revoke the license and all rights and privileges thereunder.

2. The city manager shall give notice to the licensee of his or her intent to
suspend or revoke the license, together with the grounds therefor, in the manner set
forth in A above, and provide the City Clerk with a copy of the notice.

3. In the event of a suspension of a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business
License, the city manager shall include in the notice of suspension the ground(s)
therefore, the action necessary to cure or correct such ground(s), and provide the
licensee a time limit to make such cure or correction. Failure to effect such cure or
correction within the time provided, or any extension granted by the city manager, shall
cause the revocation of the license.

4. Inthe event of suspension or revocation of Retail/Dispensary Cannabis
Business License, the licensee shall immediately cease operations.

C. Grounds for Denial of Application, License Renewal, or Suspension or
Revocation of License. The granting of a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business License,
or a renewal thereof, may be disapproved, and an existing license revoked or
suspended if:

1. The applicant or licensee has knowingly made a false statement in the
application or in any reports or other documents furnished to the City of Willows.

2. The owner of the business premises withholds or revokes consent for the
sale of cannabis and cannabis products on the premises.

3. The licensee has violated the terms of this code or California law relating to
the conduct of commercial cannabis activities.

4. Revocation or suspension of the required State-issued license.

5. The licensee failed to properly and truthfully report sales cannabis and
cannabis products, and/or failed to pay all fees and taxes in full as and when due.

6. The licensee has engaged in the sale or distribution of cannabis or cannabis
products in a location other than the licensed premises.

7. The licensee has engaged in or permitted the sale or distribution of other
controlled substances on or from the premises.

8. Excessive traffic, neighborhood and/or law enforcement activity at the
location of the applicant’s or licensee’s business premises.

9. The licensee’s failure to maintain the premises in a secure manner and/or to
protect the safety and security of employees and customers.

10. The granting or renewing of the license would perpetuate or encourage any
of the following:

(a) Engaging in the illegal sale or distribution of cannabis or cannabis
products or other controlled substances;

(b) Providing cannabis or cannabis products to minors;

(c) Diversion of cannabis or cannabis products to jurisdictions outside of
the State where cannabis and cannabis products are unlawful under State or

R p8e



£8¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

local law;
(d) Trafficking of other illegal drugs or facilitation of other illegal activity;

(e) Violence and the use of firearms in the sale or distribution of
cannabis and cannabis products;

(f) The applicant or licensee or a cannabis business owner has been
sanctioned by a licensing authority or other city or county for unauthorized
commercial cannabis activity.

(g9) The applicant or licensee viclates any provision of the MCRSA,
AUMA, this chapter or any other permits issued by the City for the cannabis
activity.

11. The cannabis business owner has been convicted of an offense that is
substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the cannabis business
for which the application is made, which includes but is not limited to:

(@) A violent felony conviction, as specified in Penal Code Section
667.5(c).

(b) A serious felony conviction, as specified in Penal Code Section
1192.7.

(c) A felony conviction involving fraud, deceit or embezzlement.

(d) A felony conviction for drug trafficking with an enhancement pursuant
to Health and Safety Code Section 11370.4 or 113798.

(d) A felony conviction for hiring, employing, or using a minor in
transporting, carrying, selling, giving away, preparing for sale, or peddling any
controlled substance to a minor; or selling, offering to séll, furnishing, offering to
furnish, administering, or giving any controlled substance to a minor.

12. Except as provided in subsections 11 of this section, an application for a
permit shall not be denied if the sole ground for denial is based upon a prior conviction
of Section 11357 of the California Health and Safety Code. An application for a permit
also shall not be denied if the State would be prohibited from denying a license pursuant
to either Section 26057(b)(5) or Section 26059 of the California Business and
Professions Code. Conviction of any controlled substance felony subsequent to permit
issuance shall be grounds for revocation of a permit or denial of the renewal of a permit.

9.20.076 Appeal of Disapprovals, Revocations and Suspensions.

A. Within fifteen (15) days after the city manager serves notification of disapproval of
the application for a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business license, or renewal thereof,
of the revocation or suspension of an existing license for any reason other than
incomplete applications, an applicant may appeal the disapproval, revocation or
suspension by notifying the city clerk in writing of the appeal, the reasons for the appeal,
and depositing all applicable fees and costs associated with the appeal. The appellant
shall be required to pay all fees and costs associated with any such appeal.

B. The city clerk shall set a hearing on the appeal and shall fix a date and time certain,
within thirty (30) days after the receipt of the applicant’s or licensee’s appeal, unless the
City and the applicant agree to a longer time, to consider the appeal. The City Clerk
shall provide notice of the date, time and place of hearing, at least seven (7) days prior
to the date of the hearing.

C. The city attorney shall appoint a hearing officer to hear the appeal and determine

Paggp4



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

the order of procedure, and rule on all objections to admissibility of evidence. The
applicant and the city manager, or his designee, shall each have the right to submit
documents, call and examine witnesses, cross-examine witnesses and argue their
respective positions. The proceeding shall be informal, and the strict rules of evidence
shall not apply, and all evidence shall be admissible which is of the kind that reasonably
prudent persons rely upon in making decisions.

D. The hearing officer shall issue a written decision within fifteen (15) days after the
close of the hearing. The decision of the Hearing Officer shall be final.

9.20.080 General Conditions for All Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business
Licenses.

A. State License. Beginning at such time that the State has begun to issue licenses
and at all times thereafter, cannabis businesses licensed within the City of Willows shall
hold a valid A-license or M-license, or both.

B. Hours of Operation. All permitted Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business premises
shall be closed to the general public and transporter deliveries and pick-ups shall be
prohibited between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.

C. Odor Control. Odors shall be contained on the property on which the commercial
cannabis activity is located. If the City receives any odor complaints, the cannabis
business shall work with the Building Official or his designee to correct odor concerns.
Unresolved or repeated odor complaints may be basis for suspension or revocation of
the license or denial of license renewal.

D. Minors. Licensees shall ensure that no person less than 21 years of age is
permitted to work as an employee, to purchase cannabis or cannabis products, or to be
on the premises of the licensee at any time.

E. Business Conducted within Building. No production, distribution, storage, display or
wholesale of cannabis and cannabis-infused products shall be visible from the exterior
of the building where the commercial cannabis activity is being conducted.

F. Security Measures. Every cannabis businesses shall maintain a commercial
burglar alarm monitoring system, and install a video surveillance system.

G. Security Breach. A cannabis business shall notify the City and the Glenn County
Sheriff's Office within twenty-four (24) hours after discovering any of the following:

1. Diversion, theft, loss, or any criminal activity involving the cannabis or
cannabis product or any agent or employee of the permittee.

2. The loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to cannabis or
cannabis product, registered qualifying patients, primary caregivers or employees or
agents.

3. Significant discrepancies identified during inventory.
4. Any other material breach of security.

H. Labeling and Packages. Labels and packages of cannabis and cannabis products
shall meet all State and Federal labeling and packaging requirements. Until such
regulations are adopted by the Federal and/or State authorities, as a condition of
license issuance, the city manager may impose labeling and packaging requirements to
protect the public safety, health and welfare of the citizens of the City of Willows.

I. Inspection Records. Inspections, if necessary, shall take place at a reasonable time
with prior notice to the cannabis business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon
reasonable suspicion of a material violation of the law or the provisions of this code or
the conditions of a license, inspections may be made at any time, with or without prior

P 982



G8¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

notice. Upon request, the cannabis business shall timely provide the City official with
reports and records related to the business including, but not limited to, sales reports,
utility bills from the commercial energy provider for the premises. This section shall not
limit any inspection authorized under any other provision of law or regulation.

J. In addition to a Retail/Dispensary Cannabis Business license, obtain and maintain a
business license from the City of Willows.

K. Maintain at all times commercial general liability insurance providing coverage at
least as broad as ISO CGL Form 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury,
including death, of one (1) or more persons, property damage and personal injury with
limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and
comprehensive automobile liability (owned, non-owned, hired) providing coverage at
least as broad as ISO Form CA 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including
death, of one (1) or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits of
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00). The commercial general liability policy
shall provide contractual liability, shall include a severability of interest or equivalent
wording, shall specify that insurance coverage afforded to the City shall be primary, and
shall name the City of Willows, its officials, employees and attorneys as additional
insured. Failure to maintain insurance as required herein at all times shall be grounds
for suspension of the license immediately, and ultimately, revocation.

L. By accepting the license, each licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
harmless to the fullest extent permitted by law the City of Willows, its officers,
employees, attorneys, agents and consultants from and against any and all actual and
alleged damages, claims, liabilities, costs (including attorney’s fees), suits or other
expenses resulting from and arising out of or in connection with licensee’s operations,
except such liability caused by the gross negligence or wiliful misconduct of City of
Willows, its officers, employees, attorneys, agents and consultants.

M. Maintain for a minimum of three (3) years a written accounting or ledger of all cash,
receipts, credit card and other financial transactions, and reimbursements (including any
in-kind contributions) as well as records of all operational expenditures and costs
incurred by the licensee in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices
and standards typically applicable to business records, which shall be made available to
the City, its auditors or consultants during business hours for inspection upon
reasonable notice by the city manager and for purposes of audit.

O. Inform the city manager, in writing, of any change of or to any of the information
submitted to the City in phase one and phase two applications, any renewal application,
or any amendments thereto, within ten (10) days of any such change including, but not
limited to, any change in ownership of five percent (5%) or more in a single transaction
or cumulatively.
P. Notify the city manager within three (3) days of any notices of violations or other
corrective action ordered by a State or other local licensing authority, and provide
copies of the relevant documents.

Chapter 9.20.090 Regulations and Enforcement.
Sections:
9.20.091 Regulations and Enforcement.
9.20.092 Public Nuisance
9.20.093 Enforcement
9.20.094 Right of Entry for Enforcement Officer

9.20.095 Abatement

Pagesd6



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

9.20.096 Summary Abatement
9.20.097 Alternative Remedies
9.20.098 Violations
9.20.099 Penalties

9.20.100 Penalties not exclusive — violation constitutes a crime

9.20.091 Regulations and Enforcement.

A. City Manager or Designee. Any action required by the city manager under this
chapter may be fulfilled by the city manager’s designee. In addition to City officers and
employees, such designee may include, but is not limited to, officials of the Glenn
County Sheriff's Office, attorneys or consultants.

B. The city manager is authorized to coordinate implementation and enforcement of
this chapter and may promulgate appropriate regulations for such purposes.

9.20.092 Public Nuisance

Any violation of this chapter is declared to be a public nuisance, subject to redress as
provided for in this title.

9.20.093 Enforcement.

A. This title shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of this chapter 9.20 of Title 9
and chapter 8.10 of Title 8 of the Willows Municipal Code.

B. The city manager shall, as he deems necessary, instruct the chief of police, Glenn
County Sheriff, fire chief, director of public works, or code enforcement officer to abate
any nuisance caused by a violation of this chapter; the cost thereof to be levied and
collected as provided for in Chapter 8 of this code.

9.20.094 Right of entry for enforcement officer.

A. Whenever an enforcement officer has reason to believe that a nuisance exists or
that an inspection is necessary to enforce any provision of this chapter, the officer may
enter the premises at any reasonable time to perform the inspection or any other duty
imposed by this title. The enforcement officer shall provide reasonable notice of the
need to enter and inspect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event there is
reasonable suspicion of the existence of a nuisance or violation that presents an
immediate or imminent danger to the health, safety or welfare of the employees of
licensee, its customers or the community at large, the enforcement officer or other City
official may enter the premises at any time without notice.

B. The enforcement officer shall present proper identification, state the purpose of the
visit and request permission of the owner or responsible person to enter the premises. If
entry is refused, the enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy provided
by law to secure entry. Any such refusal shall be grounds for suspension of the
licensee’s license.

C. When the enforcement officer has first obtained a proper inspection warrant or
other remedy provided by law to secure entry, no owner or responsible person shall fail
or neglect, after proper request is made as provided in this title, to promptly permit entry
therein by the enforcement officer for the purpose of inspection and examination
pursuant to this title.

9.20.095 Abatement.

et 9ge



/8¢

CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

Public nuisances in violation of this chapter may be abated by closure, removal,
destruction, suspension or revocation of license, or other appropriate action as
determined by the city manager. Such nuisances may be abated pursuant to chapter
8.10 of this code or, in the event of imminent or immediate dangers to the health, safety,
welfare and morals of the citizens of the City of Willows, summarily abated pursuant to
chapter 9.20.096 and chapter 8.10.160 of the Willows Municipal Code.

9.20.096 Summary abatement.

A. Certain violations of this chapter 9.20 may constitute imminent or immediate
dangers to the health, safety, welfare and morals of the citizens of the City of Willows.
Accordingly, such violations, conditions or uses may be summarily abated by the city
pursuant to WMC 8.10.160 and this chapter.

B. Such abatement shall not occur unless the city manager and/or his/her designate
finds, from a preponderance of the evidence, that such an imminent or immediate
danger exists, and has provided or attempted to provide the owner of the property in
question, or the person responsible for permitting the danger to occur, reasonable
notice within which to correct the condition, and the necessary corrective action has not
taken place. Twenty-four (24) hours shall be presumed to be reasonable notice in the
absence of evidence to the contrary. Notice hereunder need not take any particular
form, and may be dispensed with if the exigencies of the situation require immediate
abatement and/or providing reasonable notice is impracticable.

C. The cost and expenses of a summary abatement shall be made a lien on the
property and shall be collected pursuant to the procedure found in WMC 8.10.130
through 8.10.150.

9.20.097 Alternative remedies.

Nothing in the foregoing sections shall be deemed to prevent the city council from
ordering the city attorney or Glenn County District Attorney to commence a civil or
criminal proceeding to abate a public nuisance under applicable Civil or Penal Code
provisions as an alternative to the proceedings set forth herein. Nothing herein shall
prevent the city from abating a nuisance pursuant to any other procedure established by
city ordinance or state law.

9.20.098 Violations.

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, deface, or mutilate any notice, order,
statement, or resolution posted as required in this chapter.

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to obstruct, impede, or interfere with any owner
or his agent or with any representative of the city when engaged in performing any act
reasonably necessary for the execution of the order of abatement.

C. It shall be unlawful for an owner or occupant of any premises in the city to permit a
condition declared by the city to be a public nuisance to exist upon the premises.

D. Any person who shall violate this section 9.20.098 shall be subject to the penalties
set forth in WMC 1.05.080.

9.20.099 Penalties.

A. A violation of this chapter shall punishable as a misdemeanor, which shall be
punishable by a fine not to exceed one thousand dollars, or by imprisonment in the
county jail for not more than six months, or by both fine and imprisonment. Each day of
engaging in any of the prohibited activities shall constitute a separate offense.

B. Any violation of this chapter or regulation promulgated under this chapter is hereby
declared to be a public nuisance.

Paged38



CITY OF WILLOWS ORDINANCE 736-2017

9.20.100 Penalties not exclusive — violation constitutes a crime

The remedies and penalties provided herein are cumulative, alternative and
nonexclusive. The use of one does not prevent the use of any other criminal, civil, or
administrative remedy or penalty authorized by, or set forth in, the Willows Municipal
Code. None of the penalties or remedies authorized by, or set forth in, the Willows
Municipal Code shall prevent the city from using any other penalty or remedy under
state statute which may be available to enforce this section or to abate a public
nuisance. Violation of this chapter shall constitute a crime punishable as a
misdemeanor or infraction in the discretion of the city attorney.

9.20.120 Severability.

If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
chapter is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such a decision shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council hereby
declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this chapter irrespective of the unconstitutionality or
invalidity of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase.

Page 39, O 6 Z



Attachment 3

(f) Holding a distributor transport only license shall not authorize a licensee to:

(1) Engage in the delivery of cannabis or cannabis products as defined in Business and
Professions Code section 26001(0);

(2) Engage in the wholesale, destruction, packaging, labeling, or storing of cannabis or
cannabis products; or

(3) Arrange for the regulatory compliance testing of cannabis or cannabis products by a
testing laboratory.

(g9) A distributor transport only licensee who is licensed to engage in self-distribution and
whose licensed premises will be on the same property as their licensed cultivation or
licensed manufacturing premises shall comply with the security provisions contained in
chapter 1, article 5 that are applicable to their licensed cultivation or licensed
manufacturing premises.

Authority: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26012
and 26070, Business and Professions Code.

Chapter 3. Retailers
§15400. Access to Retailer Premises.

(a) Access to the licensed premises of a retailer with only an A-designation shall be
limited to individuals who are at least 21 years of age.

(b) Access to the licensed premises of a retailer with only an M-designation shall be
limited to individuals who are at least 18 years of age and have a valid physician's
recommendation for medicinal cannabis, and individuals who are at least 21 years of
age.

(c) Access to the licensed premises of a retailer with both an A- designation and an M-
designation may include persons identified in subsections (a) and (b) of this section.

Authority: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26070
and 26140, Business and Professions Code.

§15402. Customer Access to the Retail Area.

(a) Individuals shall be granted access to the retail area to purchase cannabis goods only
after the retailer or an employee of the retailer has confirmed the individual’s age and
identity pursuant to section 15404.

(b) The licensed retailer or at least one employee shall be physically present in the retail
area at all times when individuals who are not employees of the licensed retailer are in
the retail area.

(c) All sales of cannabis goods must take place within the retail area of the retailer’s
licensed premises, except for cannabis goods sold through delivery, a drive-in or drive-
through window as authorized by section 15025(e), or curbside delivery as provided in
subsection (d).

Department of Cannabis Control 188
Medicinal and Adult-Use Commercial Cannabis Regulations (March 2024) Page 102 of 229



(d) A licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness authorized to engage in storefront sales
at their licensed premises may conduct sales through curbside delivery. Cannabis goods
that have been purchased by a customer may be delivered to the customer in a vehicle
parked immediately outside the licensed retail premises. Curbside delivery of cannabis
goods must occur under video surveillance and meet the requirements of section 15044,
subsection (e) for recording point-of-sale areas. Retail employees engaging in curbside
delivery must verify each customer’s age pursuant to subsection (a). Licensed retailers
who are only authorized to engage in retail sales through delivery shall not conduct sales
through curbside delivery.

Authority: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26070
and 26140, Business and Professions Code.

§15403. Hours of Operation.

A licensed retailer shall sell and deliver cannabis goods only between the hours of 6:00
a.m. Pacific Time and 10:00 p.m. Pacific Time.

Authority: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 26070,
Business and Professions Code.

§15403.1. Requirements While Not Open for Business.

At any time the licensed premises is not open for retail sales, a licensed retailer shall
ensure that:

(a) The licensed premises is securely locked with commercial-grade, nonresidential door
locks as required in section 15046 of this division;

(b) The licensed premises is equipped with an active alarm system pursuant to section
15047 of this division, which shall be activated when the licensed retailer or its
employees are not on the licensed premises; and

(c) Only employees of the licensee and other authorized individuals are allowed access
to the licensed premises. For the purposes of this section, authorized individuals include
individuals employed by the licensee as well as any outside vendors, contractors, or
other individuals conducting business that requires access to the licensed premises.

Authority: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 26070,
Business and Professions Code.

§15404. Retail Customers.

(a) A licensed retailer shall only sell adult-use cannabis goods to individuals who are at
least 21 years of age after confirming the customer's age and identity by inspecting a
valid form of identification provided by the customer as required by subsection (c) of this
section.

(b) A licensed retailer shall only sell medicinal cannabis goods to individuals who are at
least 18 years of age and possesses a valid physician's recommendation after confirming

Department of Cannabis Control 189
Medicinal and Adult-Use Commercial Cannabis Regulations (March 2024) Page 103 of 229



	11-26-2024 Agenda Face
	Recommended Action: Approve the October 22, 2024, meeting minutes.
	Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org
	Recommended Action: Approve Resolution XX-2024 accepting the improvements associated with FY 2022-23 Pavement Project and authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion for the project.
	Contact: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director, jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org
	Recommended Action: Approve Resolution XX-2024 accepting the improvements associated with FY 2023-24 Annual Sidewalk Maintenance Project and authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion for the project.
	Contact: Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Services Director, jbettencourt@cityofwillows.org
	8. PUBLIC HEARING
	9. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
	All matters in this section of the agenda are discussed and will be acted on individually. Individuals wishing to      address the City Council concerning any of these items are invited to make oral comments of up to three minutes at this time. Please...

	Ceremonial Matters
	Pearl Harbor_update
	Presentation & Discussion
	Public Comment & Consent Calendar Forum
	AP Check Register 11-07-24
	AP Payroll Check Register 11-08-24
	Payroll Check Register 11-08-24
	10-22-2024 Minutes
	Action: Approved the October 15, 2024, meeting minutes.

	Staff Report - City Hall Holiday Closure
	Attachment 1
	Final Umpqua CC Staff Report
	Attachment 1 Resolution
	FY22-23 Pavement Project acceptance 20241126
	Attachment 1 Resolution
	2024 Sidewalk Rehabilitation Project acceptance 20241126
	Attachment 1 Resolution
	PUBLIC HEARING
	1. Staff Report - Central Commercial Dispensary Zoning and Setback
	As directed by the Council at the September 10, 2024, City Council meeting, staff is bringing forward the first reading of Ordinance 760-2024 (Attachment 1) to allow cannabis retail/dispensary businesses in the Central Commercial Zone with a Condition...
	At the February 14, 2023, City Council meeting, a public hearing was held, and a Resolution was passed approving a business license for Sundial Collective. Since approval, Sundial Collective has never moved forward with the construction of the project...
	At the May 28, 2024, City Council meeting, Resolution #19-2024 (Attachment 7) was adopted to remove all setback requirements from churches, licensed daycares, playgrounds, and parks. Still, it retained a 1,000-foot setback requirement from schools (e....
	At the July 17, 2024, Planning Commission meeting, staff presented this information and requested direction on whether to modify the zoning in which a retail cannabis business may operate with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). The Planning Commission el...

	Attachment 1- Ordinance 760-24 Central Commercial Cannabis Zoning
	18.55.030 Uses permitted with a conditional use permit.

	Attachment 2- Ordinance-736-2017
	Attachment 3- State Cannabis Regulations
	ADPC7E8.tmp
	About Pioneer: �An Overview for the City of Willows
	Introductions
	What is a CCA?
	Why Choose Pioneer?
	How Does A CCA Work?
	Our service area
	Benefits to Your Citizens
	Governance
	Community Investment
	Biomass & Advocacy
	Programs
	Community/Regional Partner
	Growing Interest in Joining Pioneer
	Next Steps
	Questions? 
	Appendix
	Mission & Vision
	Guiding Principles
	Rate Products
	Power Mix
	PG&E Programs Carry Over
	Benefits for Solar Customers
	How are customers billed?




